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RevMax
10%

Third Party
5%

Fraud
61%

RA
24%

Year ended March 31

Particulars (Rs. million) 2005 2004

Total revenue 1,172 892

Gross profit 467 348

Profit after tax 253 178

Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 27.78 20.68

Cash and bank balances 278 34

Investments 309 327

Total assets 1,745 1,086

Loan funds 309 168

Shareholders’ funds 1,233 799

Financial Highlights
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Product Share of Pdt. Rev. Overall

EBIDTA % in Total Rev. % Profitability %

FY 04

FY 05

Americas
35%

APAC
15%

EMEA
50%

A Pac EMEA Americas Total
Target 1.50 6.50 3.00 11.00
Achieved 2.12 7.29 5.02 14.43

Product Revenues - Target vs Achieved Product EBIDTA, Revenue Composition &
Overall Profitability

Product Revenue Break-up: Regions

Annuity
18%

Customisation
13%

Third Party Items
5%

New License
59%

Add License
5%

Product Revenue Break-up: ProductsProduct Revenue Break-up: Categories
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MISSION
STATEMENT

Ensure creation of value by providing a differentiating

edge to the activities of our customers, investors,

vendors and Subexians through technnovative solutions

while fulfilling our social obligations and maintaining

high professional and ethical standards.

VISION
STATEMENT

To be the leader in our areas of business through:

Total Customer Satisfaction,

Commitment to Excellence and

Determination to Succeed.

QUALITY
STATEMENT

Subexians are commited to achieve total customer

satisfaction by delivering high quality products that

meet the needs and expectations of our customers.

We commit ourselves to adhere to quality management

system requirements and to continually improve the

same.

MISSION STATEMENT

VISION STATEMENT

QUALITY STATEMENT
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Subex 2000-2005: Triumph of Determination and Commitment

• Launch of Ranger FMS

• Beta customer for Ranger FMS

• Listing in Bombay Stock
Exchange

• Commercial roll-out of
Ranger FMS

• First international
customer for Ranger FMS

• Acquisition of Magardi,
Inc., Canada

• Launch of INcharge

• First installation for INcharge

FY 01 FY 02 FY 03

FY 01 FY 02 FY 03

Revenues 557.88 592.51 706.41
(Rs. million)

Profit after tax 102.77 41.84 96.12
(Rs. million)

EPS (Rs.) 14.2 5.87 13.12

Share of product
revenue in total
revenue (%) 7 30 36

Employees 90 115 154

Customers 5 18 22

Installations 5 24 54

Countries 2 8 13
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• Listing in National Stock
Exchange

• Becomes 2nd largest FMS
vendor in the world

• Launch of RevMax suite

• Acquisition of Alcatel’s Fraud
Management Group

• Acquisition of Lightbridge’s
Fraud Centurion

• Becomes the largest FMS vendor
in the world

FY 04 FY 05

FY 04 FY 05

879.25 1165.5

177.5 257.2

20.68 27.78

45 54

177 262

39 69

75 115

19 37
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Subash Menon
Chairman & Managing Director

Dear Shareholder,

Six years ago, your company started in the software products
business with no prior experience or customers and with global
leaders as competitors, amidst potential customers and investors
who were absolutely skeptical of our future. All we had as assets
was our strong conviction in our ability to achieve and a small
group of about 5 software professionals. Today, six years hence,
your company is the largest global vendor of fraud management
systems for telecom applications, by number of customers and
installations. Further, our second product is also proving to be a
success, we are serving 115 networks spread across 37 countries,
we have taken over some of the competition while others have
been overtaken by us, we have over 250 software professionals
with us and we have the full support of our customers and
partners. While scaling new heights and reaching the watershed
mark of global leadership, your company has created substantial
value for you – our shareholders. I take this opportunity to
thank all the Subexians, but for whose unstinting efforts, this
would not have been possible and all the shareholders who
supported us all along – through thick and thin – in our quest
for success.

As always, let me take you through the key financial data. Our
revenue grew by 32% to reach Rs. 1,165 million while Profit
After Tax (PAT) grew by 45% to reach Rs. 257 million. For the
first time, products eclipsed services and contributed 54% of
the revenue. This is in line with our focus on products. Further,
EBIDTA in the products business increased from 47% to 51%.
Products recorded a revenue of Rs. 628 million that translates to
a growth of 58%. Thus, the products business has done quite
well in all respects.

Positioning

Products business is highly dependant on stature, positioning
and perception within the industry. We have been striving all
along on this front to improve our stature thereby increasing
the traction. I am glad to report that we have progressed
significantly in this effort aided by the acquisitions that were
concluded during this financial year, leadership in the fraud
management space, expansion of the sales and support presence
globally etc.

During the year, we participated in 23 trade shows – large and
small – across all the four regions that we operate in, namely
Americas, EMEA, APAC and China. We also presented papers at
various conferences around the world. This investment has gone
a long way in positioning your company as a thought leader in
our chosen space. We will persist with such investments and
similar activities in keeping with our stated objective – to be
the global leader in revenue maximization.

Revenue composition

With the increase in the number of installations, support revenue
has been on a growth curve. This part of the revenue provides

evenness and stability to the otherwise lumpy nature of software
products business. Support, also termed as Annuity, contributed
18% to the revenue. New license revenue was quite healthy at
59% while additional license fees brought in another 5% of the
revenue. The quantum of new license revenue is indicative of
the continued success of our products with new customers and
in new geographies. This growing penetration will further increase
the support revenue in the years to come.

Another interesting aspect regarding the revenue is the fact that
69% of the revenue came from existing and acquired customers.
This statistic is an important element to ensure evenness in the
business in the future. A steady flow of contracts from existing
customers buttressed by contracts from new customers will help
your company post excellent growth year on year.

Finally, the product-wise split of revenue also portends an
attractive picture. Ranger™, the fraud management system
contributed 61% towards the revenue. As the flagship product,
this is to be expected. However, given the level of maturity in
the fraud management market, this statistic proves our belief
that Ranger™ is gaining market share at a fast pace and is
emerging as the most sought after product in that space. Thus,
revenue from Ranger™ will continue to grow in the years to
come and will be a major contributor to the growth of your
company. The contribution from INcharge™, at 23%, is another
comforting fact. Revenue assurance is a relatively new field with

Chairman’s Review

Customisation
13%

Third party
Items
5%

New license
59%

Add license
5%

Annuity
18%

Acquired
33%

New
31%

Existing
36%

Customer-wise Split of Product Revenue

Category-wise Split of Product Revenue
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tremendous opportunities for growth. The current level of revenue
from INcharge™ underscores the fact that INcharge™ is gaining
momentum among the telcos and will grow to a significant size
in the near term while it eclipses Ranger™. Thus, between these
two products, your company will pull in considerable revenues
in the coming years. New products to be launched will further
strengthen the situation.

Acquisitions

We have always considered acquisition as an excellent strategy
to spur growth. In keeping with this strategic approach, we
concluded two acquisitions in FY05. It is quite pertinent to
elaborate our modus operandi in this regard. The first and foremost
aspect is that we prefer to be proactive and not reactive. This
means, we will not be responding to opportunities presented by
external agencies like investment bankers. Rather, we draw up a
list of potential candidates based on our requirements and
strategic intent and then employ the investment bankers to bring
as many of these candidates as possible to the negotiating table.
This method ensures that the conclusion of any acquisition will
be that of a very suitable company and not that of one that has
been made to fit our needs. Further, it ensures that the suitability,
post-acquisition integration, structural impacts in the
organization, customer issues and a variety of other matters
related to execution would have been thought through and
solutions arrived at, well before the acquisition closes, thereby
facilitating a smooth execution resulting in the deal turning
accretive from the very beginning.

The above detailed methodology has proven itself yet again in twin
acquisitions – fraud management businesses of Alcatel and
Lightbridge – concluded in October 2004. I am delighted to report
that both the acquisitions have been accretive on a net basis, after
all related expenses and amortization, from the first month of
operation. Based on this, we are confident of a very short payback
period of 12 to 18 months i.e. latest by March 2006. This success
with two cross border acquisitions, conceptualized and executed
simultaneously, has given a huge impetus to our confidence in the
strategy and hence, we will continue to explore opportunities.
However, we will be extremely cautious and will make sure that any
and all acquisitions meet our criteria to the fullest extent. We will
focus on the twin objectives of expanding our customer base while
broadening our offering, in the years to come.

Consequent to the acquisitions, we established two new offices
in the US (Broomfield, Colorado) and in UK (Slough). Both the

offices have been integrated with the rest of the company and
are now fully manned.

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB)

In order to fund the acquisitions, we resorted to the issue of
bonds. These bonds were issued to institutional investors. Out
of the total of US$ 10 million of bonds, US$ 5.15 million worth
have been converted as on March 31, 2005. The bonds have
been converted at Rs. 300 per share.

Services business

In keeping with our commitment to the products business and
the long term objective to be a significant player in our chosen
space of revenue maximization, we have decided to spin off the
services business into a wholly-owned subsidiary. This re-
structuring will have to be effected through the judiciary and
will take a few months. However, upon receipt of the approval
from the judiciary, the same will be made effective on a
retrospective basis from April 1, 2005.

Business outlook

In my letter to the shareholders last year, I had written about
certain fundamental shifts in the telecom industry after the
cataclysmic changes experienced during and after the downturn.
One of the shifts was that a healthy revenue assurance software
and consulting market emerged shortly after the telecom recession
hit. Unbridled network expansion during the boom years led to
widespread data integrity problems and careless operational
processes. Thus, revenue assurance systems proved a perfect
antidote for the times, helping telcos plug revenue leaks, clean
up error-prone inventories and boost bottom lines without
spending new money on networks or marketing. Apart from the
studies conducted by Deloitte and RHK substantiating the fact
that the revenue maximization market (that includes fraud,
revenue assurance etc.) is growing rapidly, Dittberner Associates,
Inc., released a new study recently that pegs the size of the
revenue assurance business (a subset of revenue maximization)
at US$ 432 million in 2008.

Another study conducted by Analysys of UK has established that
operators lose about 13.7% of their revenue due to revenue
leakages. Out of this, 4% was attributable to fraud and the balance
to revenue leakage issues. Thus, fraud continues to be a major
problem for the operators who are aiming to reduce the total
loss to less than 1.5%. To reach that target, substantial
investments will have to be made by the carriers in people,
processes and software solutions. We currently straddle this entire
area of leakages with our two products and are further expanding
the portfolio in depth as well as breadth. All these studies confirm
our belief that this market is set to grow significantly in the
future and that we are squarely positioned in a market with
attractive opportunities.

Metrics are key to evaluate the performance of any company.
These metrics gain significance when the area is rather new or
when the lay of the land is not clear. Software products companies
are few and far between in India and such companies operating
in the telecom space is quite rare. So, in order to make an
informed analysis of the performance of Subex, it is absolutely

Third party
5%

Fraud
61%

RA
24%

RevMax
10%

Product-wise Split of Revenue
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essential to compare Subex against overseas companies that
operate in similar spaces. Please refer the Industry vs. Subex
graph given below.

Ph 1 (Phase 1) – Launch & Beta

Ph 2 (Phase 2) – Establishing market presence

Ph 3 (Phase 3) – Profits, steady growth, expansion of product
portfolio

Ph 4 (Phase 4) – Market dominance, exponential growth, huge
profits

A critical aspect that I am endeavouring to elaborate here is the
time taken by software product companies to move from Ph 1
(Launch & Beta) to Ph 4 (Market dominance, exponential growth,
huge profits) after having moved through Ph 2 and Ph 3 given
above. The graph clearly demonstrates that while Subex has taken

6 years to reach Ph 4, the industry is taking 8 years. Thus, your
company has shortened the period by 2 full years owing to its’
strategy, quality of products, capability of the personnel etc. This
saving of about 25% of time is quite huge and is probably un-
heard of in the western world. More importantly, the funds invested
to progress from Ph 1 to Ph 4 is considerably lesser in our case
due to the controlled cost of our operation. Thus, your company
has recorded an excellent performance in all respects, in comparison
with peers from the western world. This performance will help us
attain and maintain leadership in the future.

Where are we headed?

It must be obvious to you from the above discussion that your
company is well positioned in a growth market. Further, we have
been systematically building and improving the business that
has resulted in an excellent turnout with respect to the key
metrics for a telecom software product company of our size.
Finally, we have achieved some of the leadership targets that
we had set for ourselves and are on course to meet the others.
Our experience, coupled with the strong foundation that has
been put in place alongwith a very strategic approach makes us
quite confident of the future. We have built a unique business
model interweaving the core strengths of technology, domain
knowledge, cost advantages and market opportunity. The ongoing
task is to continue to scale this model to reach the qualitative
and quantitative targets set for the years to come.

I take this opportunity to thank all the customers, vendors,
shareholders and Subexians for their excellent support at all
times. Let me assure you that the Board of Directors and the
management of your company will continue to strive to maximize
your revenues.

Subash Menon

Industry

Subex

1 2 3
0

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Industry vs. Subex

Ph 1

Ph 1  Ph 2

Ph 3

Ph 4

Ph 4

Ph 3

Ph 2

(Years)
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In the mid-90s, with factors such as the dotcom bubble spurring
growth across the tech industry, telecom operators were
scrambling to grow their business at a very fast pace. Fighting
to stay ahead of the competition, their focus was on subscriber
and revenue growth with relatively less attention to cost. Funding
was available in plenty and the mantra for many telecom operators
was “Build it and they will come”

The bubble burst towards the end of the decade and the industry
as a whole was left with staggering losses to the tune of billions
of dollars. Most companies went under while the more successful
ones began extensive downsizing and reined in capex while
struggling to stem their losses from quarter to quarter. This in
turn adversely affected the vendor market, many of whom were
forced to shut shop for want of revenue or additional funding.

However, management of telecom fraud remained a top priority
for many operators worldwide during the two phases of boom
and bust. The reasons are not hard to find – operators focused
mainly on rapid subscriber growth are very attractive to fraudsters.
They take advantage of numerous security and process loopholes
to gain access to their network and extensively use their services
with no intention of paying for it. During the downturn, curbing
fraud allowed operators to stop revenue leakage and consequent
decline in profitability. For example, operators get billed by
carriers for international calls made by fraudsters but they in
turn will not get paid for these calls. This can adversely impact
their bottomline, especially considering the large volume of calls
made by professional fraudsters

Another area of activity started gaining mindshare rapidly as
operators worldwide sought ways and means to increase
profitability in an environment where revenue growth targets
were becoming increasingly hard to achieve. Revenue assurance,
as a process, has been around for many years in large operator
networks but in recent times has begun to be considered across
the world as an excellent solution for profitability enhancement
in a tough environment. Revenue assurance essentially focuses
on auditing numerous control points within operations and
uncovers areas where revenue is being lost, many times due to
reasons as diverse as process failures, system failures,
communication gaps, weak controls and re-organization. Fixing
the points of leakage and collecting lost revenue does not involve
much investment and so is proving to be a profitable venture
that adds directly to the operator’s bottomline.

The global telecom industry is now stabilizing and previously
identified growth areas where significant investment was
committed (such as 3G) are showing signs of taking off. The
industry is also witnessing a major evolution with packet based
networks slowly replacing the legacy circuit switched ones, which
will allow seamless deployment of next generation services with
lower cost. In short, the underlying network fabric and services
that are going to be delivered over that infrastructure is set to
change drastically over the next few years thus leading to an
explosion of new revenue generating streams.

With the telecom industry entering an exciting phase of high
growth, the primary challenge ahead of every operator is to
steer their organization towards profitable growth that is
sustainable over the long term. This requires a bold new approach
to proactive revenue maximization, one that allows the operator
to support their growth strategy with a process that integrates
cost optimization, revenue assurance, operational intelligence
and margin enhancement. This integrated approach goes far
beyond selected revenue growth or cost cutting measures as a
means of growing the business.

Many leading operators around the world are already shifting
their focus towards revenue maximization i.e. how to ensure
that the revenues earned are realized and how to extract the
best value from the existing customer base. This focus has resulted
in operators starting to invest in fraud management systems
and revenue assurance systems. However this approach of
operators to invest piecemeal in point solutions addressing
different aspects of revenue maximization is fraught with danger.
In the past, operators bought different systems that form the
OSS chain without ensuring an integrated architectural strategy,
resulting in an OSS chain that does not work well together.
Operators now have an opportunity to not repeat the mistake
when it comes to the revenue maximization strategy and systems.

Subex introduced the industry-first RevMax Integrated Platform
to help operators put in place an integrated revenue maximization
strategy and process that helps them move towards sustained,
profitable growth. Multiple revenue maximization solutions (such
as Fraud Management or Revenue Assurance system modules)
can be seamlessly plugged into the platform where they share
basic components and analytical information. With the platform
in place, an operator can grow their revenue maximization efforts
by adding solutions and components at various stages. The
platform provides a complete end-to-end coverage of an operator’s
business – retail, wholesale, interconnect - and operations, from
product design and activation to collections. It also offers the
advantage of a “single-pane” view of their revenue maximization
process that combines intelligence information acquired by
various systems to provide metrics that can be used for high-
level decision making.

By putting in place a well thought-out and streamlined process
with the support of the RevMax Integrated Platform architecture,
operators will be well placed to evolve their business from today’s
focus on cost-optimization to a period of strong, sustained
profitable growth.

Pioneering Revenue Maximization

Vinod Kumar
Senior Product Manager
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In the competitive world of telecom networks, operators
worldwide are moving towards offering unified services – voice/
data/3G/m-commerce and a host of value added services to
customers. In this scenario, combating fraud becomes a daunting
task. A rule based engine or simplistic solutions do not work
anymore – a flexible, scalable solution is needed.

Ranger FMS is part of the RevMax suite of revenue maximization
products from Subex Systems Ltd. From its inception in early
2000 till now Ranger has been installed at more than 100 sites
in more than 30 countries. Ranger’s success can be attributed to
the versatile nature of its solution and the flexibility and
scalability the product offers to the network operators in
combating fraud.

Centralized case management

Ranger is one of the first FMS to have an integrated case
management and workflow inbuilt into the product. All the alerts
belonging to a subscriber are collated into a single alarm view
from which the fraud analyst can make decisions. The alarm
management view provides subscriber information, alert
information along with the call records as well as the typical
workflow associated with these alerts. Ranger also provides
callDNA - graphical view of usage pattern comparison and
integrated i2™ views at the click of a mouse button from the
analysis window.

Pre-screening subscribers

Ranger is the first fraud management solution to provide an
integrated, full-fledged subscriber pre-screening module. What
better way to combat fraud than not to allow fraudsters enter
into the network? The module provides the ability to check new
subscriber details with that of a grey/black list using word
compare, phonetic, substring and lot more operators.

Exposure management

Another unique feature of Ranger is the capability of calculating
dynamic and static credit limits. The Credit Management Module
(CMM) provides exposure management in the form of color-coded
report within the FMS itself. This provides another level of
analytical capability to the fraud analyst.

Ranger Automated Threshold Engine (RATE)

Using static subscriber grouping generates more false positives
during alert generation. Ranger automated threshold engine uses

slow learning statistical techniques to adjust the thresholds for
individual subscribers. Calculating thresholds at subscriber level
drastically reduces the number of false positives generated thereby
enabling efficient operation of fraud analysts.

Scalability and performance

Ranger has been built ground up as a scalable solution. Ranger
has been deployed in networks ranging from a capacity of 5
million call records per day to more than 100 million call records
per day. Ranger provides multiple deployment options. Ranger
can be deployed either on a single server and as need be, can
also be deployed on multiple servers, thus reducing the TCO for
the network operator.

Hybrid model: AI and rules

Ranger provides a hybrid model for fraud detection that integrates
rules and threshold-based alerts with those generated by artificial
intelligence. The hybrid model provides for usage of rules for
known fraud types and AI is used for detecting previously
unknown fraud types as well as to detect usage pattern
mismatches of a subscriber.

Ready for future

Ranger FMS is useful for the current networks as well as for the
future. Ranger has been deployed in various combinations for
combating fraud in voice and data networks supporting post
paid as well as prepaid subscribers. Ranger has been deployed
on wireless (GSM/CDMA) as well as wireline networks. The
flexibility of Ranger architecture means that Ranger is always
ready to combat fraud in the new services and products launched
by network operators.

As part of the RevMax suite, Ranger provides network operators
with a choice that provides an integrated solution for achieving
revenue maximization.

RangerTM FMS: Ready for Future

K. Dakshinamurthy
Chief Technology Officer
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Carriers today are looking to constantly enhance their bottom
lines while seeking to increase revenue in a challenging
environment. With revenue and cost leakages occurring across
the operator’s business, it has now become imperative for
the operators to focus on identifying the source of these
leakages, quantifying their magnitude and addressing them
by following a holistic revenue assurance approach that
includes automated tools and process improvements.

INcharge Revenue Assurance Solution from Subex helps
carriers identify and accurately measure revenue leakage
across their organization in an automated manner. INcharge’s
flexible modules are designed to identify and address issues
specific to each business group such as unbilled subscriber
usage, overpayment of interconnect charges and discrepancies
between multiple OSS in order to provide the carrier with an
overall view into the revenue leaks that are occurring within
their organization.

Revenue Assurance (RA) for better business

Tackling RA

It is estimated that a minimum of 2 to 15 percent of annual
billing revenues is lost due to ineffective RA. Operators are at a
greater risk of revenue leakage with the introduction of new
infotainment and M-commerce services. Increased competition,
pressures on the margins and non-recognition of revenues add
to the possibility of revenue leakage within an operator’s network.

Industry regulations (UK’s OTR003 and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act)
are other key requirements of the telecom industry. Revenue
assurance can contribute significantly to compliance of such
regulations.

INcharge, the end-to-end revenue assurance solution,
provides the flexibility and cost reduction associated with
an integrated, forward-looking system that is structured to
handle multiple, existing and future technologies as well as
additional requirements such as regulation.

Pioneering telecom RA through INcharge

Subex has released Version 3.0 of INcharge that provides
significant improvements and benefits over earlier versions
of the product. INcharge now offers enterprise level revenue
assurance capability that allows operators to complete the
cycle of revenue assurance practice from Reactive Revenue
Assurance to Active Revenue Assurance to Proactive Revenue
Assurance. This is achieved through the following modules:

§ Usage Integrity Assurance module

§ Billing Verification module

§ Provisioning and Facilities Assurance module

§ Interconnect Revenue and Cost Assurance module and

§ Test Call Generator

INcharge modules help the operators adapt the product
according to the specific requirements of the operator and
increase the scope of activities by seamlessly adding modules
to the system.

INcharge provides benefits to operators in the following ways:

� End-to-end RA through a modular philosophy – Usage,
Billing, Interconnect, Provisioning & Assets and Test call
generator

� Detect revenue leakage occurring in the billing chain of the
network

� Estimate the impact of an end-to-end revenue assurance
product on the network

� Empower analysts to understand how to automate routine
reconciliation activities

� Enable operators to reduce cost and inefficiencies in the
network

� Realizing business benefits in adopting an integrated
revenue maximization approach in the organization

� Easy configuration of the system through a powerful GUI

� Drill-down & structured “4-Step” root cause analysis to
reduce analysts’ time and effort

� Capture immediate benefits and at the same time provide
for a template to plan for future growth

� Powerful reporting functions through dashboards and
reports, among others

INchargeTM of Revenue Leakage

Anuradha
Vice President - Engineering
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Tradeshow name Month, Year Location

ITU Telecom Africa May, 2004 Cairo

Billing & OS World 2004 May, 2004 Washington

Revenue Assurance & Cost
Management May, 2004 London

European Telecommunications
Network Operators June, 2004 Cyprus

Communications Fraud Control
Association Annual Exhibit June, 2004 San Francisco

Billing World China 2004 June, 2004 Beijing

Africa Fraud Forum meeting June, 2004 Namibia

Subex User Meet August, 2004 Goa

IIR African Revenue Assurance
Billing & CRM September, 2004 Cape Town

GSM Fraud Forum September, 2004 Madrid

GSM Central & Eastern Europe September, 2004 Zagreb

China Mobile Operator Business
& Services International September, 2004 Beijing

Subex User Meet October, 2004 Denver

GSM Middle East & Gulf October, 2004 Dubai

Telecoms Africa 04 October, 2004 Cape Town

United States Telecom Association
Annual Exhibit October, 2004 Las Vegas

CFO Summit October, 2004 Holland

3rd Annual Combating Telecom
Fraud In Asia Summit November, 2004 Hong Kong

3G World Congress APAC November, 2004 Hong Kong

GSM Americas November, 2004 Rio de Janerio

GSM Africa November, 2004 Cape Town

GSM India January, 2004 Goa

We continued to participate in global events and industry meetings all
through the year, besides organizing two user meets for our customers.

Events
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The telecommunication technology business greatly benefits from
collaborative efforts that bring operators and vendors together
to define and implement initiatives to tackle specific business
challenges. Such collaborative efforts allow operators and vendors
to arrive at a common understanding of the underlying problems,
help vendors design relevant solutions and facilitate operators’
evaluation of competing solutions. Clearly, such collaborative
efforts benefit most from participants that are recognized thought
leaders and practitioners in their respective domain. Operators
in particular exert great caution to ensure that vendors do not
use such collaborative efforts to further narrow product or
technology interests. It is only after years of contribution and
demonstrable success that a vendor is invited to be part of such
collaborative efforts. It is indeed recognition of a vendor’s
leadership status to be invited to join industry collaboration
initiatives.

As a recognized leader in the revenue maximization niche, Subex
has been specifically invited by industry organizations to
participate and indeed lead some of these collaborative efforts.
The TeleManagement Forum’s (TM Forum) Revenue Assurance (RA)
Catalyst Project in one such important collaborative effort. Subex
is privileged to lead the effort for this project.

The TM Forum is a 15 year old non-profit global organization
that provides leadership, strategic guidance and practical
solutions to improve the management and operation of
information and communications services. TM Forum boasts of a
membership of over 400 companies, both operators and vendors.
The Catalyst program is the TM Forum’s living lab – enabling
operators and vendors to work together to solve common, critical
industry challenges. The program provides an opportunity for
multi-company, multi-national teams to work together with
emerging technologies and capabilities to solve some of the
pressing operational and interoperability issues. Subex is a leading
participant of TM Forum’s Revenue Assurance (RA) Catalyst
Project. The RA Catalyst Project addresses the need for a well
defined framework to identify, implement and evaluate the
benefits of an enterprise-wide revenue assurance project.
To ensure that its recommendations are in line with operational

reality, the RA Catalyst Project involves practioners with real
world experience and responsibilities. The Catalyst Project team
consists of six participating best-in-class RA vendor
organizations, including Subex, and two operator sponsors.
Subexians provide key leadership inputs to the Catalyst Project
team in their role as Marketing Coordinator and Technical Team
Leader. Subex participated in the TM Forum’s TeleManagement
World Expo from 17-20 May, 2005 in Nice, France where the RA
Catalyst Project team demonstrated an integrated multi-vendor
solution. Subex’s participation in the RA Catalyst Project places
it in the league of industry leading vendors that go beyond
merely supplying tools and participate in the standards setting
efforts.

Participating in and leading initiatives such as the TMF RA Catalyst
Project puts Subex in front of leading operators across the world.
This enables Subex to forcefully present its credentials as an
expert with relevant domain knowledge. Operators now view Subex
as being more than a mere vendor and consider us a thought
leader. This is a significant competitive advantage that Subex
enjoys over other vendors. From this position, Subex is not only
able to guide an operator’s requirements but is also able to
learn and quickly adapt its product roadmaps and new product
launches in line with operator’s business imperatives. Moreover,
Subex creates tremendous goodwill and confidence amongst
potential customers that may be leveraged to capture leadership
position especially for new products. Thus participating and
leading industry collaboration initiatives is a key marketing
strategy for Subex to elevate its positioning and enhance its
brand equity. While the strategy takes time to implement and
show results, the benefits are considerable.

From Market Leadership to Setting Standards

Sanjeev Gadre
Senior Manager,

Business Development
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Many Moods of Subexians
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Sustainability in business has a lot do with people and people
management. Many organisations do not pay adequate attention
to this matter and hence have not been able to achieve their
goals. At Subex, we understand the importance of people and
the direct connectivity with the growth of an organisation and
the growth of its’ employees. Hence we have taken up
management bandwidth enhancement as a critical task. We call
this the Subex Leadership program (SLP).

SLP focuses on providing intense learning opportunity to a
Subexian on matters related to leadership (in the Subex context)
and thus improve his/ her skills on the subject. The process
that we have followed is as follows:

Grooming Future-Proof Leaders

Development

o Based on adult learning cycle

o High level training provided on each
competency

Assessment of leadership skills

o Each participant subjected to three different

assessments:

� 360 degree feedback from colleagues

� 16 pf based Psychometric testing

� Outbound based assessment

o Each participant provided with a comprehensive

report after the assessment phase

o One-on-one discussions with the lead assessors
to identify areas of development

Identification of leadership parameters

o Evolved after brainstorming meetings of executive

management using the Lominger cards process

o Based on Subexian traits

o 8 competencies, 23 sub-competencies and
92 work behaviours identified

This is a process that takes 12 to 18 months for completion and
we are nearing the completion of activities for the first batch.
The experience and the results have been quite encouraging
and Subexians find that this approach of an in-depth assessment
helps them quite a lot in identifying their areas of strength and
areas that need improvement. In 2002, Subex won an award for
being very innovative in its Human Resources Practices and
this leadership development program is also a step in that
direction as we find that this is one of the most comprehensive
programs in the industry today.

Sudeesh Yezuvath
Chief Operating Officer
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Pratik Gaurang Shah

Rajesh Abraham

Ranganath H S

Sanjaya G S

Santosh Rao

Shankar Nag

Shivayogi

Siva Koteswara Reddy

Sudhir P Krishna

Swaminathan M

Syed Rehan

Arun Kumar K

Elaine Savins

Hari Babu K

Jyothy Mariam John

Kiran Thomas

Kumar M D

Ramasubramanian S

Manjunath G

Nitin R

Poornima N

Praful Pujar

The Subexian Pride Award aims to recognize and reward Subexians who exhibit and internalize the Subexian Traits ( Strategy, Ethics &
Professionalism, Quality, Leadership, Commitment, Perseverance and Customer Orientation) on their jobs and facilitate the translation
of these traits from an abstract concept to a work practice.

Subexian Pride Award Winners 2004-05
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Subex in the Community

Subex Charitable Trust (SCT) extends the outlook of Subex as a
corporate entity into Community Service. SCT aids in helping the less
fortunate strata of our society including orphanages, old age homes
and needy individuals, in a structured manner. The trust has its own
budget and a set of trustees who manage the funds and activities.
Most of the activities taken up by SCT involve direct help to the
needy and not mere donation of funds to other larger charitable
organizations. Subexians are encouraged to inform the trust about
individual causes that require help, however small they might be. The
trustees then check the genuineness of the cause and arrange for the
funds or help accordingly.

Besides these, SCT is also involved in helping select institutions like
orphanages, school for the visually impaired and old age homes. SCT
manages the day-to-day running expenses and Subexians also volunteer
for help during weekends. SCT has also lent a helping hand in terms
of monetary contributions made by Subexians, with matching grants
by Subex Systems, for natural calamities like the Gujarat Earthquake
and the more recent Tsunami disaster.

Some of the projects SCT is involved with, besides individual
causes, include:

Vishwaneedam Trust, Bangalore

Gurukul School (Vedavyasa Bharati Trust), Bangalore

Aashta Foundation for Human Learning and Growth, Bangalore

Tribal Health Initiative, Sittilingi, Dharmapuri District, Tamil Nadu

Chetana Apangamati Vikas Sanstha, Kolhapur, Maharastra

Rakum School for the Blind, Bangalore
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Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2005
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the eleventh annual
report together with the audited accounts of the company for
the year ended March 31, 2005.

Financial results

Amount in Rs. million

2004-05          2003-04

Total revenue 1172.46 891.94

Profit before interest,
depreciation & amortization 356.74 246.02

Interest, depreciation &
amortization 95.64 56.98

Profit before tax 261.10 189.05

Provision for taxes 8.07 11.54

Profit after tax 253.03 177.50

Appropriations

Interim dividend (10%) 9.28 Nil

Preference dividend 4.65 Nil

Dividend proposed

a) on equity shares (20%) 20.13 14.71

b) on preference shares Nil 22.65

Provision for tax on dividends 4.52 4.78

Transfer to general reserve 25.50 13.50

Surplus carried to balance sheet 448.50 259.55

Overview

The financial year ended March 31, 2005 was a stellar year for
your company in many respects. Our revenue grew by 31.45% to
reach Rs. 1,172 million while Profit After Tax (PAT) grew by 43%
to reach Rs. 253 million. For the first time, products eclipsed
services and contributed 54% of the revenue. This is in line with
our focus on products. Further, EBIDTA in the products business
increased from 47% to 51%. Products recorded a revenue of
Rs. 628 million that translates to a growth of 58%. Thus, the
products business has done quite well in all respects.

As is evidenced by the figures above, the products business is
growing in line with our strategic plan and is set to further gain
in relative terms in the years to come. Over the past 3 years,
software products have increased their contribution in the overall
revenue from a low figure of 7% in FY01 to 54% in FY05.
Additionally, one of the key metrics that we track, namely the
Average Revenue Per Contract (ARPC) has increased to
US$ 875,000 from US$ 700,000 in FY04.

Turning to the qualitative aspects, we acquired the fraud
management businesses of Alcatel and Lightbridge. More
importantly, we integrated these businesses quite well into our
operations and achieved cost efficiencies leading to the
acquisitions being accretive during this financial year i.e., a
mere 6 months after the acquisitions were concluded. This aspect

indicates the ability of your company to assimilate acquisitions
into its’ operations in an effective manner.

One of our objectives has been to achieve absolute leadership
in the fraud management business. During the course of the
year, through both organic and inorganic means, we became the
largest vendor of fraud management systems globally, thereby
attaining undisputed leadership in this area.

Business

Subex operates in a niche market providing revenue maximization
solutions to communications service providers worldwide. These
solutions improve the revenues and profits of the communications
service providers through identification and elimination of
leakages in their revenue chain. Subex conceptualizes and
develops software products at its facilities in Bangalore and is
focused on the telecom business segment. Subex has sales and
support offices in Canada, UK, China and United States. Subex’s
vision is to be a global leader in its’ chosen area of operation –
namely revenue maximization for communications service
providers. Subex aims to be the leader in revenue maximization
solutions for communications service providers globally and has
taken several strategic initiatives to fulfill its’ ambition. The
company is focused on the products side of the business and is
committed to grow this segment faster in the coming years. In
keeping with this vision, the company is in the process of
subsidiarising its’ services business, which is quite unrelated to
the products business. During FY06, the services business will
be transferred to a wholly owned subsidiary thereby allowing
the parent to turn itself into a pure products player.

Last year, your Directors mentioned about certain fundamental
shifts in the telecom industry after the cataclysmic changes
experienced during and after the downturn. One of the shifts was
that a healthy revenue assurance software and consulting market
emerged shortly after the telecom recession hit. Unbridled network
expansion during the boom years led to widespread data integrity
problems and careless operational processes. Thus, revenue
assurance systems proved a perfect antidote for the times, helping
telcos plug revenue leaks, clean up error-prone inventories and
boost bottom lines without spending new money on networks or
marketing. Apart from the studies conducted by Deloitte and RHK
substantiating the fact that the revenue maximization market
(that includes fraud, revenue assurance etc.) is growing rapidly,
Dittberner Associates, Inc., released a new study recently that
pegs the size of the revenue assurance business (a subset of revenue
maximization) at US$ 432 million in 2008.

Another study conducted by Analysys of UK has established that
operators lose about 13.7% of their revenue due to revenue
leakages. Out of this, 4% was attributable to fraud and the balance
to revenue leakage issues. Thus, fraud continues to be a major
problem for the operators who are aiming to reduce the total
loss to less than 1.5%. To reach that target, substantial
investments will have to be made by the carriers in people,
processes and software solutions. We currently straddle this entire
area of leakages with our two products and are further expanding
the portfolio in depth as well as breadth. All these studies confirm

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SUBEX SYSTEMS LIMITED
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our belief that this market is set to grow significantly in the
future and that we are strategically positioned in a market with
attractive opportunities.

Starting with a zero base in early 2000, our fraud management
system has now been installed in 115 networks spread across 37
countries in 4 continents. INcharge™, our revenue assurance
system has been installed in 12 networks. This growth over the
past few years has propelled us to a leadership position in fraud
management. We expect to repeat that performance in revenue
assurance within the next few years to achieve total leadership
in our chosen space of revenue maximization. We intend to
buttress our organic growth with strategic acquisitions that are
accretive to profits.

Dividend

In December 2004, we paid an interim dividend of 10% (Re. 1
per share). Your Directors are pleased to recommend a final
dividend of 20% (Rs. 2 per share) for the current year. The total
amount of dividend is Rs. 29,409,363 (including interim & final
for FY 2004-05) as against Rs. 14,707,622 for the previous year.
Dividend on equity shares (including dividend tax), as a
percentage of profit after tax, is 13.14% as compared to 9.35%
in the previous year.

The register of members and share transfer books will remain
closed from July 22, 2005 to July 28, 2005, both the days
inclusive. The annual general meeting of the company has been
scheduled for July 28, 2005.

Issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB)

During the year, your company issued FCCBs aggregating to US$
10 million by way of public issue outside India. These bonds are
listed in the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Proceeds of the FCCB
issue have been utilised towards acquisitions of the fraud
management businesses of Alcatel, UK and Lightbridge, USA.

Changes in share capital

During the year the company has allotted 34,106 equity shares
of Rs. 10 each to various employees on the exercise of stock
options granted to them under the Employee Stock Options Plan
– II. Pursuant to the terms of the subscription agreements
executed with the company, Intel Capital Corporation and Toronto
Dominion Bank, holders of Redeemable Optionally Convertible
Cumulative Preference Shares, have opted for conversion of their
holdings of Redeemable Optionally Convertible Cumulative
Preference Shares to equity shares and accordingly they were
allotted 479,500 and 316,755 equity shares respectively. During
the year 5,150 Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (nominal
amount - US$ 5,150,000) were converted at the option of the
investors and 792,306 equity shares have been allotted to the
investors in lieu of the FCC Bonds converted. Due to the above,
the outstanding issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share
capital increased from 7,353,811 during the previous year, to
10,067,223 shares as at March 31, 2005.

Subsidiaries - Subex Technologies, Inc.

For the year ended March 31, 2005, Subex Technologies, Inc. (STI)
earned an income of US$ 10,842,595 and a net profit of

US$ 80,870. STI provides manpower for the contracts of the
company with its customers in US on a transfer pricing mechanism
and as such the profits on the contracts are reflected in the
company’s accounts. The consolidated accounts are separately
appended to this report. The management has obtained an
independent valuation of the subsidiary, according to which, there
has been no impairment in the carrying cost of the investment.

Subex Technologies Limited

During the year, Subex Technologies Limited (STL) has been
formed as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the company. STL is yet
to commence its commercial operations.

Employees stock option plans

Your company has instituted two Employee Stock Option Plans
(ESOPs) to enhance employee commitment and to reward
performance. The details of the scheme are given below.

Employees Stock Option Plan - I (ESOP – I)

This scheme was instituted during 1999 and managed by Subex
Foundation with a corpus of 1,20,000 equity shares. Subsequent
to the issue of bonus shares, the number of shares available
under the scheme was increased to 2,40,000 equity shares. This
scheme is not operational now and hence, during the year, no
further options were issued.

Employees Stock Option Plan - II (ESOP- II)

Under this scheme, a corpus of 5,00,000 options were created for
grant to the eligible employees. Each option is convertible into one
fully paid-up equity share of Rs. 10. This scheme has been formulated
in accordance with the SEBI guidelines on ESOP & ESPS issued on
June 19, 1999. As per the scheme, a compensation committee was
formed and this committee grants options to the eligible employees.
The options are granted at a price, which is not less than 85% of
the average market price of the underlying shares, based on the
quotation on the stock exchange with maximum trading volume,
for 15 consecutive trading days immediately prior to the date of
the grant.  The options granted will be vested over a period of 1 to
4 years and can be exercised over a period of 4 years from the date
of vesting.  As on March 31, 2005, 258 employees were granted
stock options aggregating to 3,36,385 options. Details of options
granted under ESOP II scheme is as follows.

As at As at
March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Options outstanding at
the beginning of the year 301,440 196,375

Granted 101,800 130,650

Forfeited/cancelled 32,749 15,599

Exercised 34,106 9,986

Balance at end of the year 336,385 301,440
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Corporate governance

Subex is committed to ensure good corporate governance practices
in its operations. In achieving this objective, the company has
always endeavored to operate as a responsible and law abiding
corporate citizen. Your company strives to implement the best
corporate governance model at par with the best companies. Your
company has complied with all the recommendations of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on corporate
governance. For the fiscal 2005, the compliance report is provided
in the Report on Corporate Governance included in this annual
report.  The Auditor’s certificate on compliance with the mandatory
recommendations of SEBI is annexed to this report. In addition,
your Directors have documented your company’s internal polices
on corporate governance. In line with the SEBI recommendations
the Management’s Discussion & Analysis of the financial position
of the company is provided in this annual report and is mentioned
hereby for reference.

During the year, your company was rated by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India, as one among the top 25 companies
in India for ensuring good corporate governance practices.

Your company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange,
Mumbai, the National Stock Exchange and the Bangalore Stock
Exchange. Also, your company’s Foreign Currency Convertible
Bonds are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Your
company is complying with the listing agreements of the above
stock exchanges. During the year, your company opted to de-list
its equity shares from the Hyderabad Stock Exchange.

Audit committee

The audit committee presently has 5 Directors as members viz.
Mr. V. Balaji Bhat, Mr. K. Bala Chandran, Mr. Vinod R Sethi,
Mr. Subash Menon and Mr. S. N. Rajesh. Except Mr. Subash Menon,
rest of the members of the audit committee are non-executive
Directors. Mr. Balaji Bhat is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
The role, terms of reference, the authority and power of the
audit committee are in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 1956. More details of the audit committee are
given in the Report on Corporate Governance attached to this
annual report.

Directors

During the year, Mr. Alex P. J resigned from the position of
Executive Director of the company and is continuing as a Director
of the company. Mr. K. Bala Chandran and Mr. Vinod R. Sethi,
Directors retire by rotation, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. Your Directors recommend reappointment of the
above Directors.

Fixed deposits

Your company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the
public.

Particulars of employees

As required under the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of
Employees) Rules, 1975, the names and other particulars of
employees are set out in the annexure included in this report.

The Department of Company Affairs has amended the Companies
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, to the effect that
particulars of employees of companies engaged in the Information
Technology sector, posted and working outside India, not being
Directors or their relatives, drawing more than Rs. 2.4 million
per financial year or Rs. 0.2 million per month, as the case may
be, need not be included in the statement. Accordingly, the
statement included in this report does not contain the particulars
of employees who are posted and working outside India.

Information under Section 217 (1)(e) of the Companies Act,
1956 read with Companies (Disclosures of Particulars in the
Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988

A Conservation of energy

The operations of your company are not energy-intensive.
However, significant measures are taken to reduce energy
consumption by using energy-efficient computers and by the
purchase of energy-efficient equipment. Your company constantly
evaluates new technologies and invests to make its infrastructure
more energy-efficient. Currently your company uses CFL fittings
and electronic ballasts to reduce the power consumption of
fluorescent tubes. Air conditioners with energy efficient screw

ESOP II

1. Number of shares/ options allotted/ granted during the year 101,800

2. Grant price – percentage of discount to the market price of the shares on
the date allotted/ granted 85% of average market price for

15 days prior to the date of grant.

3. Shares/ options issued to during the year

A. Directors: Nil
B. Key Executives: 38,000

1. Mr. Justin Johnson – 15,000
2. Mr. Greg Le Neveu – 15,000
3. Mr. V. R. Suresh Rao – 8,000

4. No. of employees to whom more than 5% of the shares/ options issued
during the year Nil

5. No. of employees who were issued shares exceeding 1% of the issued
capital of the company. None

6. Diluted earnings per share Rs. 26.53
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compressors for central air conditioning and air conditioners
with split air conditioning for localized areas are used.

B Technology absorption, adoption and innovation

Your company has not imported any technology. However, the
telecommunications domain in which your company operates, is
subject to high level of obsolescence and rapid technological
changes. Your company has developed inherent skills to keep
pace with these changes. Since software products are the
significant line of business of your company, the company incurs
expenses on product related research & development on a
continuous basis. These expenses are charged to revenue under
the respective heads and are not segregated and accounted
separately.

C Foreign exchange earning and outgo

Your company has, over the years, shifted its focus from software
services to software products. During the year, total foreign
exchange inflow and outflow is as follows:

i) Foreign exchange earnings Rs. 1,042.08 million (previous
year, Rs. 640.473 million)

ii) Foreign exchange outgo Rs. 646.72 million (previous
year, Rs. 644.81 million)

Auditors

The term of office of M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered
Accountants, as auditors of the company expires at the conclusion
of the ensuing annual general meeting and they are eligible for
re-appointment.

Social responsibilities - Subex Charitable Trust

The trust was set up to provide for welfare activities for the
underprivileged and the needy in the society. The trust is managed
by trustees elected from amongst the subexians. During the year
the trust has provided active support for rural heath care
initiatives and for education of underprivileged children.

Directors’ responsibility statement

In accordance with the provision, of Section 217(2AA) of the
Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors affirm

a) That in the preparation of the accounts for the year ending
March 31, 2005, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed and there are no material departures there from.

b) That the accounting policies have been selected and applied
consistently (except with respect to change in provision for
depreciation) and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2005 and of the
profit of the company for the year ended on that date.

c) That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

d) That the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2005 has
been prepared on a going concern basis.
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Name Designation Qualification Age Experience Date of Remuneration Previous employment
(No. of years) commencement received

of employment Rs.

Subash Menon President & CEO B.E 40 17 December, 1994 6,656,521 Eltel Industries

Alex  P. J* Executive Director B.E 40 17 December, 1994 2,391,531 Inductotherm (India)
Limited

Sudeesh Yezhuvath Wholetime Director B.Tech 36 15 December, 1994 6,622,694 Transmatic Systems
Limited

Dakshinamurthy Karra Chief Techonolgy Officer B.Sc 41 17 February, 1999 2,658,967 Powertel Boca Ltd

Anuradha Vice President - Engineering MS 40 16 June, 2003 2,530,670 Mistral Software Pvt  Ltd

P. Vinod Kumar Director - Sales B.Tech 35 13 October, 1997 2,893,454 Crompton Greaves Ltd

* Resigned from the position of Executive Director w.e.f February 3, 2005

Notes : Remuneration comprises basic salary, allowances and taxable value of perquisites.
Sudeesh Yezhuvath is the brother of Subash Menon and except this, none of the other employees is related to any of the other Directors of the
company.

Annexure to the Directors’ report

Information as per Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of employees) Rules, 1975 and
being part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended March 31, 2005.
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I. Company’s philosophy on code of corporate governance

Subex Systems Limited is committed to good corporate
governance. Consistent with this commitment, Subex seeks to
achieve a high level of responsibility and accountability in the
internal systems and policies. Subex respects the inalienable
rights of the shareholders to information on the performance
of the company.  The company’s corporate governance policies
ensure, among others, the accountability of the Board of
Directors and the importance of its decisions to all its
participants viz., customers, employees, investors, regulatory
bodies etc. Subex’s Code of Corporate Governance has been
drafted in compliance with the code of “Corporate Governance”
as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEBI) on January 25, 2000.

Ii. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Subex comprises 8 Directors. Details of
the composition of the Board of Directors and their attendance
and other particulars are given below:

A. Composition and category of Directors as on March 31, 2005

Category No. of Directors %

Promoter Directors 2 25%

Non-Executive Independent Directors 5 62%

Other Executive Directors 1 13%

Total 8 100%

B. Attendance of Directors at the Board meetings and the last AGM and details about Directorships and membership in committees as
on March 31, 2005.

Director Category No. of No. of Last AGM No. of No. of No. of
Board Board attendance Directorships committees committees

meetings meetings in other in which the in which the
held attended companies Director is Director is

▲ Chairman member
■ ■

Mr. Subash Menon Chairman &
Managing Director 5 4 Yes 1 - 1

Mr. Alex P. J Non-Executive
Director* 5 3 Yes - - -

Mr. K. Bala Chandran Non-Executive
Independent Director 5 2 No 1 1 5

Mr. V. Balaji Bhat Non-Executive
Independent Director 5 5 Yes 6 4 2

Mr. Vinod R. Sethi Non-Executive
Independent Director 5 4 Yes 6 - 2

Mr. Sudeesh Yezhuvath Wholetime Director 5 4 No 1 - 1

Mr. S. N. Rajesh Nominee Director 5 3 Yes 1 1 1

Mr. P. P. Prabhu Non-Executive
Independent Director 5 4 Yes 2 - -

▲ Excluding private limited companies & overseas companies.
■ Including committee memberships in Subex Systems Ltd.
* Mr. Alex P. J resigned as Executive Director with effect from February 3, 2005.

C. Number and dates of board meetings

5 (Five) Board meetings were held during the year. The dates on
which meetings were held are as follows

April 30, 2004, July 29, 2004, October 29, 2004, January 27, 2005,
February 21, 2005

D. Brief details of Directors seeking re-appointment

1. Mr. K. Bala Chandran is a Graduate in Physics and holds a Post
Graduate Diploma in Business and Industrial Management. He is
the Managing Director & CEO of  M/s Krone Communications Ltd.,
a listed company in the field of physical connectivity solutions
for telecommunications and data networking. Mr. Chandran is
Chairman of shareholders’ grievance committee and a member of
the audit and remuneration committees of Subex Systems Limited.

2. Mr. Vinod R. Sethi is a graduate in Chemical Engineering and
also holds a degree in B.Tech from IIT, Mumbai and MBA in
Finance from Stern School of Business, New York University.  His
earlier assignments include a stint with Morgan Stanley as Chief
Investment Officer and Portfolio Manager of Morgan Stanley Asset
Management Company, managing over US$ 2.4 billion of
investments in India. He is also a Director on the Board of the
following companies: Chandamama India Limited, Axsys Health
Tech Limited, Green Power Management Services Limited, Vasishta
Ventures Inc., GTL Limited, Geodesic Information Systems Limited,
IndusAge Advisors Private Limited and Asia Bio-Energy Limited.
Mr. Sethi is a member of the audit and remuneration committees
of Subex Systems Limited.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Iii. Audit committee

A. Terms of reference

The audit committee has, interalia, the following mandate:

• Overseeing the company’s financial reporting process and
disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible

• Recommendation of appointment and removal of external
auditor, fixation of audit fee and also approval of payment
for any other services

• Review of annual financial statements before submission to
the Board

• Review of adequacy of internal control systems

• Review of adequacy of internal audit function, including the
reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal audit

• Review of the company’s financial and risk management
policies

The current charter of the audit committee is in line with
international best practices and the regulatory regime formulated
by SEBI and the listing agreements with the stock exchanges on
which Subex is listed.

Attendance of committee members at the audit committee meetings held during the year:

Member No. of audit committee meetings held No. of audit committee meetings attended

Mr. V. Balaji Bhat 4 4

Mr. K. Bala Chandran 4 2

Mr. Vinod R. Sethi 4 4

Mr. S. N. Rajesh 4 2

Mr. Subash Menon+ 4 1

+ Mr. Subash Menon was co-opted to the Audit Committee on January 27, 2005.

B. Composition of audit committee

Composition Category
Mr. Balaji Bhat,Chairman Non-Executive

Independent Director

Mr. K. Bala Chandran Non-Executive
Independent Director

Mr. Vinod R. Sethi Non-Executive
Independent Director

Mr. S. N. Rajesh Nominee Director

Mr. Subash Menon Chairman & Managing
Director

The Company Secretary is the secretary of the audit committee.

C. Meetings and attendance during the year

During the financial year 2004-05, the audit committee meetings
were held four times, i.e., on April 30, 2004, July 29, 2004, October 29,
2004 & January 27, 2005 and the audited financial results for the
year ended March 31, 2004 and quarterly unaudited accounts for
the period ended June 30, 2004, September 30, 2004 and December
31, 2004 were adopted at these meetings respectively.

Iv. Remuneration committee

Composition of the committee

Mr. S. N. Rajesh - Chairman

Mr. Vinod R. Sethi

Mr. K. Bala Chandran

The committee looks into remuneration of Executive Directors.
The committee had one meeting during the year on April 30,
2004 wherein except Mr. S. N. Rajesh other members were present.

Details of remuneration to Directors for the year 2004-2005

Amount in Rs.

Name Designation Salary Commission Total

Mr. Subash Menon Chairman & Managing Director 2,906,521 3,750,000 6,656,521

Mr. Alex P. J* Non-Executive Director 2,391,531 - 2,391,531

Mr. Sudeesh Yezhuvath Wholetime Director 2,872,694 3,750,000 6,622,394

Mr. K. Bala Chandran Non-Executive Independent Director - 200,000   200,000

Mr. V. Balaji Bhat Non-Executive Independent Director - 200,000   200,000

Mr. Vinod R. Sethi Non-Executive Independent Director - 200,000   200,000

Mr. S. N. Rajesh Nominee Director - - -

Mr. P. P. Prabhu Non-Executive Independent Director - 200,000    200,000

Note: The above figures are excluding the sitting fees

* Mr. Alex P. J resigned as Executive Director with effect from February 3, 2005.
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The following Directors have been allotted stock options under the employee stock options plan of the company.

Name Designation No. of options No. of shares vested and exercised
as on March 31, 2005

Mr. K. Bala Chandran Non–Executive Independent Director 7,500 1125

Mr. V. Balaji Bhat Non–Executive Independent Director 7,500 1125

Mr. Vinod R. Sethi Non–Executive Independent Director 7,500 1125

Mr. P. P. Prabhu Non–Executive Independent Director 7,500 -

The above stock options were granted at the same terms and conditions as mentioned in the ESOP II of the company.

V. Share transfer committee

The company holds share transfer committee meetings one/ two/
three times a month, as may be required, for approving the
transfers/ transmissions of equity shares. The company has
appointed M/s. Canbank Computer Services Limited, a SEBI
recognised transfer agent, as its Share Transfer Agent with effect
from November 6, 2001. The share transfer committee has met 7
(seven) times during the financial year 2004-05 on these days:

September 15, 2004, October 03, 2004, November 30, 2004,
December 31, 2004, February 15, 2005, February 28, 2005,
March 15, 2005

The company ensures that the share transfers are effected within
one month of their lodgement.

VI. Investor grievance committee

A. Composition of the committee

The members of the company’s investor grievance committee are:

Mr. K. Bala Chandran, Chairman

Mr. Alex P. J *

Mr. Sudeesh Yezhuvath *

This committee looks into redressal of shareholder and investor
complaints.

* Mr. Sudeesh Yezhuvath was co-opted as a member of the
investor grievance committee in the place of Mr. Alex P. J
on February 21, 2005.

Mr. Rajkumar C, Company Secretary & Legal Counsel is the
Compliance Officer of the company.

B. Meetings during the year

The committee has met 4 (Four) times during the current financial
year on these dates:

Apil 30, 2004, July 29, 2004, October 29, 2004, January 27, 2005

Details of the grievances of the investors are provided in the
“Shareholders’ Information” section of this report.

VII. ESOP committee (compensation committee)

The company has instituted employee stock option plans in line
with the SEBI Guidelines. In order to grant options under the
scheme to eligible employees, a compensation committee has
been formed.

A. Composition of the committee

The committee comprises the following members:

Mr. V. Balaji Bhat, Chairman

Mr. K. Bala Chandran

Mr. Subash Menon

B. Meetings during the year

The committee met 4 (Four) times during the current financial
year on the following dates:

April 01, 2004, July 01, 2004, October 01, 2004, January 01, 2005

VIII. General body meetings

A. Location and timings of the last three AGMs

Year Date of AGM Venue Time

2001-2002 November 15, 2002 Le Meridien – 3.00 p.m.
Bangalore

2002-2003 September 09, 2003 Le Meridien – 3.00 p.m.
Bangalore

2003-2004 August 24, 2004 Le Meridien – 3.00 p.m.
Bangalore

B. Postal ballot

No special resolutions were put through the postal ballot last
year.

IX. Disclosures

A. There are no materially significant related party transactions
of the company with the promoters, the Directors or the
management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc that may have
potential conflict with the interests of the company at large.

B. The company has not been subjected to any penalties,
strictures by stock exchange(s)/ SEBI or any statutory authorities
on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three
years. The company has been complying with the listing
conditions.

The company’s shares were delisted from Hyderabad Stock
Exchange (HSE) w.e.f. January 19, 2005 vide their letter bearing
no. HSE: LIST: 2005:415.

X. Means of communication

A. Annual/ half yearly and quarterly results

The annual/ half yearly/ quarterly audited/ un-audited results
are generally published in all editions of Business Standard and
Udayavani. The complete financial statements are posted on
the company’s website www.subexsystems.com. Subex also
regularly provides information to the stock exchanges as per the
requirements of the listing agreements and updates the website
periodically to include information on new developments and
business opportunities.
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B. Management’s discussion and analysis section is part of the
annual report.

XI. General shareholder information is provided in the
“Shareholders’ Information” section of the annual report.

XII. Auditors’ certificate in respect of compliance of
conditions of corporate governance as per Clause 49 of the
listing agreement with the stock exchanges is enclosed in
this annual report.

for Subex Systems Limited

Bangalore Subash Menon
April 28, 2005 Chairman &  Managing Director
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE TO THE MEMBERS OF SUBEX SYSTEMS LIMITED

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Subex Systems Limited, for the year ended March 31,
2005, as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with the Stock Exchanges.

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination has been limited
to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representations made by
the Directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in Clause 49 of the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

4. As required by the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, we have to state that based on the
report given by the Registrars of the Company to the Investors’ Grievances Committee, as on March 31, 2005, there were no
investor grievance matters against the Company remaining unattended/pending for more than 30 days.

5. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

V. Srikumar
Bangalore Partner
April 28, 2005 Membership No. 84494
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Overview

The management of Subex is committed to improving the levels
of transparency and disclosure. Pursuant to this philosophy, an
attempt has been made to disclose hereunder, information about
the company, its business, operations, outlook, risks and financial
condition.

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with
the requirements of the Companies Act, 1956, and the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India. The management
of Subex accepts responsibility for the integrity and objectivity
of these financial statements, as well as for various estimates
and judgments used therein. In addition to the historical
information contained herein, the following discussion includes
forward looking statements which involve risks and uncertainties,
including, but not limited to, risks inherent in the company’s
growth strategy, dependence on certain clients, dependence on
availability of qualified technical personnel and other factors
discussed in the following paragraphs.

Part 1: Company, business, operations, outlook and risks

1 Company

1.1 Subex Systems Limited (Subex) was incorporated in 1994 as
a Private Limited Company under the Companies Act, 1956 at
Bangalore, Karnataka. Subex was converted into a Public Limited
Company in 1996 and it made an Initial Public Offer (IPO) during
July 1999 and the equity shares are listed on Bangalore, Mumbai
and National Stock Exchanges.

1.2 Subex’s applications for registration of the trademark “Subex”
and “Ranger” with the authorities in India have been accepted
and are under process. Applications for trademark registrations
for “Ranger”, “INcharge” and “RevMax” in the US have also been
accepted by the authorities and are in various stages of
completion. Further, we are in the process of filing for patents
in both US and India.

1.3 Subex operates in a niche market providing revenue
maximization solutions to communications service providers
worldwide. These solutions improve the revenues and profits of
the communications service providers through identification and
elimination of leakages in their revenue chain. Subex
conceptualizes and develops software products at its facilities
in Bangalore and is focused on the telecom business segment.
Subex has sales and support offices in Canada, UK, China and
USA. Subex’s vision is to be a global leader in its chosen area of
operation – revenue maximization for communications service
providers.

2 Business and market

2.1 Business segments

Subex operates in two business segments.

Telecom software products - Subex’s defined space of operation
for products is revenue maximization for communications service
providers. Towards this end, Subex has developed and is marketing
Ranger™, a fraud management system and INcharge™, a revenue
assurance system. Further, Subex is in the process of developing
additional products for the same market segment. These products
form a suite in the revenue maximization space, called RevMax™.
During the year ended March 31, 2005, we launched our integrated

platform called RevMax integrated platform. The customers for
these products are voice, data, internet and such other
communications service providers. The company sees tremendous
potential in this area.

Ranger™ - Fraud is a global malaise in telecom networks and has
a very significant impact on the bottom lines of telecom
operators. Fraudsters, who are proving to be extremely innovative,
are devising advanced techniques to defraud networks and the
losses can be quite huge. Surveys show that about 4% of the
industry’s revenue is lost on account of fraud.

Though digital technologies like GSM and CDMA are secure to a
large extent from technical frauds, subscription related and
behavioral frauds are on the upswing. A very focused approach
is essential to combat these frauds in telecom networks. The
types of fraud that are generally encountered by the telcos are:

• Subscription fraud

• Call selling fraud

• Premium rate service fraud

• Cloning fraud

• Internal fraud

• PABX hacking fraud

• Clip-on fraud

• Pre-paid fraud

• Roaming fraud

Combating fraudsters calls for high-end preventive solutions.
Successful management of fraud depends upon the ability of the
solution to pre-empt the occurrence of fraud rather than reacting
after the fraud has occurred in a large scale. Ranger™ detects
fraud in the network at an early stage, thus limiting the revenue
loss that may be suffered by the operator.

Ranger™ employs a unique mix of events, rules, profiling, pattern
matching, subscriber pre-check and credit management to identify
and curb fraudulent activity. The call data of each subscriber is
mapped and analyzed to furnish accurate alarms and reports to
the operator.  Comprehensive information on the case provided
by Ranger™ enables the investigator to quickly settle a case,
which reduces the exposure to fraud considerably.

Ranger™ comprises closely integrated modules that allow telecom
operators to constantly keep a track on the usage pattern of
their subscribers and detect fraud in their network. Ranger™
Fraud Management Module forms the core and various optional
modules are detailed below:

• Ranger™ Subscriber Pre-check Management Module (RSPM)

• Ranger™ Credit Management Module  (RCMM)

• Ranger™ Prepaid Fraud Management Module (RPFM)

INcharge™ - Revenue leakage in a carrier’s network can occur at
any point in the billing chain. Errors and mismatches across
switches, inventory, provisioning, mediation, rating and billing
systems result in revenue losses from incorrect billing, unused
assets and unbilled usage, among other things. Some of the
most common causes of revenue leakage include:

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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a. Unbilled usage or facilities due to provisioning system errors

b. Incomplete, missing, duplicate and inaccurate CDRs (Call
Detail Record) from switches

c. Incorrect identification and mis-handling of CDRs within
mediation and billing systems

d. Mismatches between inventory and billing systems

e. Billing and rating errors

Further, increasing competition in telecommunications markets
and the emergence of a growing number of new services has led
to a substantial increase in interconnection (IC) traffic. The fees
paid out to other carriers for traffic passed to their network
account for roughly half of a carrier’s operating costs, and thus
deserves a much closer scrutiny. While long established inter-
carrier billing guidelines and systems in place have been
reasonably effective for traditional carriers, downsizing, mergers
and acquisitions and other realignments have made accounting
difficult for many carriers in the present environment. Further,
older service order and billing mechanisms have not kept pace
with the speed of deployment of new services. This has left the
carrier with plenty of room for significant revenue leakage in
their interconnect business and so makes it imperative to find a
reliable solution to verify and realize maximum revenue and
minimum cost from interconnection traffic.

A revenue assurance tool helps the operators to automate their
revenue leakage detection and resolution process. It provides
benefits to the revenue assurance analysts in the following ways:

■ The right tool needs to provide an end-to-end revenue
assurance capability, allowing analysts to progressively
extend revenue assurance to all areas of operation

■ The tool should perform automatic processing and
reconciliation of large data volumes, thus offering larger
coverage

■ The tool should include powerful analysis tools that help
revenue assurance analysts quickly zero in on root cause of
a detected revenue leakage

■ Workflow to help prioritize the most critical issues and lead
on to structured resolution and tracking of issues

INcharge™ revenue assurance system  helps carriers identify and
accurately measure revenue leakage across their organization in
an automated manner. INcharge’s flexible modules are designed
to identify and address issues specific to each business group
such as unbilled subscriber usage, overpayment of interconnect
charges and discrepancies between multiple OSS in order to
provide the carrier with an overall view into the revenue leaks
that are occurring within their organization. INcharge™ contains
multiple modules that employ the system’s re-usable engines to
tackle specific revenue assurance business issues for the operator
in an automated manner. Each INcharge™ module is designed to
address specific revenue assurance issues and multiple modules
can be seamlessly plugged into the core architecture as desired.
A carrier can thus start addressing a specific revenue leakage
problem (such as interconnect revenue leakage, for example)
with a single module and later expand their revenue assurance
efforts to other parts of their business by adding the other
modules as and when necessary.

INcharge™ uses a very flexible and scalable architecture to help

operators automate and streamline revenue assurance processes
and functions. The architecture makes use of re-usable engines
and components that allow the product to integrate completely
with the operator’s revenue chain and provides a single, holistic
solution to address their unique revenue assurance needs across
the entire organization.

The architecture contains two integrated components:

■ Re-usable engine components that implement a basic
framework for automating multiple, recurring revenue
assurance tasks, and

■ Modules that use the re-usable engines to address specific
business issues, covering every facet of revenue assurance

This modular architecture allows for rapid changes, customizations
or new capabilities to be added to the INcharge™ system in
order to enable it to adapt to an operator’s environment and
address their specific requirements.

INcharge™ revenue assurance system offers features that can
address varied requirements of different operators and networks.
The key features of INcharge™ are:

■■■■■ End-to-end revenue assurance: With specific modules for
different revenue segments, INcharge™ provides functionalities
to tackle revenue assurance issues across the network
elements and operational functions.

■■■■■ Configurability: INcharge™ provides highly flexible components
that can be configured to suit the requirements of different
types of networks and operations.

■■■■■ Powerful root cause analysis methods: INcharge’s structured
“4-Step” root cause analysis methods reduces analyst’s time
and effort in identifying and resolving issues.

■ Comprehensive reporting facility: INcharge™ provides powerful
reporting functions through dashboards and reports.

Telecom software consulting  - Subex serves telcos and vendors
(in the telecom space) for their software development
requirements in the Operations Support Systems (OSS) space.
The focus is on application development for billing, customer
care, inventory management, performance monitoring etc. AT&T
continues to be the largest customer for this business unit. Given
the focus on software products, this part of the business is being
transferred into a wholly-owned subsidiary during FY06. Upon
completion of that process, the company will be able to further
focus on products and the parent will be a pure products player.

Business mix - Subex aims to be the leader in revenue
maximization solutions for communications service providers
globally and has taken several strategic initiatives to fulfill its’
ambition. Over the years, the business mix has tilted in favour
of software products as against software consulting. Over the
past 4 years, software products have increased their contribution
in the overall revenue from a low figure of 7% in FY01 to 54% in
FY05. The company is focused on the products side of the business
and is committed to grow this segment faster in the coming
years. In the future, due to the subsidiarisation of the software
consulting business, products will contribute over 80% of the
revenues even on a consolidated basis within the next 2 to 3
years. The company is exploring both organic and inorganic
options to reach this objective.
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2.2 Strategy

2.2.1  Subex has always charted a very strategic course from
inception. Our entry into the software products business was
marked by a careful selection of fraud management system as
the product of choice, through the evaluation of various options
using a well defined set of parameters. This choice and the
parameters used stand vindicated by the tremendous success
that has been experienced by Ranger™, our fraud management
system.

2.2.2  The next step was to decide on the markets to be addressed.
We deliberately chose the developing markets, as addressing the
highly complex telecom networks of the developed countries
would have been difficult for a start-up from a third world country.
This strategic move enabled us to gain a foothold and references
without huge investments in infrastructure, sales and marketing.

2.2.3  While a reference base was being created in Asia, Africa
and Eastern Europe, we defined our business as revenue
maximization. This paved the way to conceptualize and develop
the next product. Thus was born INcharge™, the revenue
assurance system. In the absence of a proper definition of the
business, we could not have identified another product with
substantial synergy with Ranger™. Any lack of synergy would
have drained our limited resources in a short span of time without
any positive results. Needless to say, our well thought out
approach to the definition of the business and to the second
product resulted in major cost efficiencies, market reach and an
attractive value proposition to our customers.

2.2.4  With the availability of an excellent reference base and a
suite of products, we turned our attention to a well-timed entry
into the developed world. However, we realized that we need to
have adequate processes, systems, organization structure and
stature to address the developed markets effectively. We evaluated
our position in each area and also set out the road map for the
company. Armed with this data, we conducted a gap analysis
and evolved a holistic method to redress all the issues. This led
to the improvement of the management bandwidth, support
infrastructure, development capabilities, sales network, marketing
reach and other related requirements. We also decided on
acquisition as the route to enter the western markets. We then
drew up a set of key parameters that were to be met by any
company for it to be considered as a potential target.

2.2.5 Once we were confident of our readiness to integrate
acquired entities into our business and to leverage the newly
acquired assets, we set out on a proactive acquisition program.
We identified several potential candidates by applying our
parameters in a stringent manner and engaged an investment
banker to contact these candidates. The final result of several
months of such concerted efforts was the acquisition of the
fraud management businesses of Alcatel and Lightbridge.

2.2.6  Strategy, we believe, is a critical element to ensure success
and can be employed to turn disadvantages into opportunities.
Given the success that we have experienced, consequent to the
strategies that we have deployed, we will continue to be very
strategic in our approach with respect to every component of
our business namely, products, markets, acquisitions etc. Our
strategic approach has also resulted in the launch and deployment
of future-proof solutions with superior support in the networks
of our customers. This, in turn, is our guarantee for continued
success and growth.

2.3  Market opportunity - The market that Subex operates in
i.e., provision of revenue maximization solutions to
communications services providers is growing by leaps and
bounds. Several studies and market surveys have established
the significance and potential of this market segment. Prominent
among those studies is the OSS Market Forecast by RHK, Inc.
According to that study, the worldwide OSS market will grow at
a CAGR of 7% from 2003 to 2007, in effect growing from
US$ 31.1 billion to US$ 40.5 billion. The Commercial Off The
Shelf (COTS) portion of this growth is expected to be 11% CAGR
as more telcos are expected to opt for COTS as against internal
development. In an era of focus on core competence, telcos
have realized that relying on COTS provides a better growth path
into the future combined with sustainability and dependability.

While the growth in the OSS market in general is of interest to
Subex, what is of greater importance is the projected growth in
its’ area of operation, namely revenue maximization (referred to
as revenue assurance in the table given below). Here, the figures
predicted by the RHK forecast are even more attractive.

As can be seen from the table and graph below, the revenue
maximization or revenue assurance market size is expected to
grow from US$ 300 million to US$ 800 million over the 4 year
period from 2003 to 2007 resulting in a CAGR of 28%.

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Billing mgmt and rating 3.8 3.7 4.0 4.2 4.4 4.6

Billing mediation 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7

Revenue assurance 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8

Customer care 2.2 2.4 2.7 3.0 3.3 3.7

Source : RHK, Inc.

Amount in US$ billion
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Another study conducted by Analysys of UK has established that
operators lose about 13.7% of their revenue due to revenue
leakages. Out of this, 4% was attributable to fraud and the balance
to revenue leakage issues. Thus, fraud continues to be a major
problem for the operators who are aiming to reduce the total
loss to less than 1.5%. To reach that target, substantial
investments will have to be made by the carriers in people,
processes and software solutions. We currently straddle this entire
area of leakages with our two products and are further expanding
the portfolio in depth as well as breadth. All these studies confirm
our belief that this market is set to grow significantly in the
future and that we are strategically positioned in a market with
attractive opportunities. Given the current penetration of its
products in the global marketplace and the proposed launch of
more products to address this space more effectively and
extensively, Subex is confident of garnering a significant portion
of this market in the coming years.

2.4  Customer base – The customer base for both the products
have been growing well. The company today serves 69 telcos
over 115 networks, spread across 37 countries. Starting with a
zero base in early 2000, Ranger™ has now been installed in all
the 115 networks. INcharge™ has been installed in 12 networks.
The company has been penetrating larger networks and currently
manages fraud and revenue assurance for some networks with
15 to 20 million subscribers. Our products have been scaling up
to meet the demanding needs of such huge and complex networks.
Going forward, the objective is to book contracts from even
larger tier-1 carriers.

2.5  Revenue model - The revenue model of a company decides
the growth potential and stability of the organization. Subex’s
revenue model is quite robust and is capable of imparting
substantial gains in the future. This revenue model has been
designed to scale up with and benefit from the growth of the
communications service providers while ensuring affordability
of the solutions even during initial roll out of networks by these
customers. To that end, Subex licenses its software solutions on
a per subscriber or per transaction basis, resulting in continuous
growth in license revenues depending on the growth of the
networks where the solutions are installed. Another sustainable
revenue stream is the support revenue calculated as a function
of the license revenue. These three streams of revenue – new
license, additional license and support – are expected to lend
stability to the overall revenue of the company. Further, we also
have a fourth stream of revenue namely, customization. The
following chart gives the revenue from each of the four streams
and from third party items during FY05.

Amount in Rs. million

Revenue FY05 FY04 Growth

New license 374.93 281.87 33%

Addl. license 31.46 57.97 (46%)

Support 110.31 25.87 326%

Customization 79.36 16.14 391%

Third party items 31.89 14.88 114%

The growth in support revenue is a good indication of the
significance of our products in the networks of our customers
and lends a stable revenue base. The entry of customization

into the revenue stream indicates the extensive use of our
products by our large customers that results in the need for
customizations. The growth in third party revenue indicates an
increasing reliance of our customers on us for products related
to our solutions like database, SS7, hardware and software etc.
This further manifests the increasing stature of Subex as a
significant partner of our customers.

2.5 Geographical mix  -  Consequent to the acquisitions, our
revenue from the western markets have been on an upswing.
The revenue split among the various geographies is given below.

Amount in Rs.

Area Revenue in Revenue in Percentage
FY05 Rs. mln FY04 Rs. mln growth

EMEA 378.09 213.27 77%

Americas 155.14 85.76 81%

APAC 94.75 97.80 -3%

2.7 Average Revenue Per Contract (ARPC) - A key measure of
the success of a product company is the ARPC. This is a function
of the size of the networks where the products are being installed,
number of products in the suite that are being installed and the
license revenue per subscriber or transaction record. This key
parameter has been growing fast at Subex increasing from about
US$ 200,000 in FY02 to US$ 875,000 in FY05. As the cost of
sales and that of implementation on a per contract basis does
not rise in proportion to the ARPC, a direct impact of the growth
in ARPC is a sign of improvement in profit and profitability.

2.8 Marketing

2.8.1 Brand building - Products business is highly dependant on
stature, positioning and perception within the industry. We have
been striving all along on this front to improve our stature thereby
increasing the traction. We are glad to report that we have
progressed significantly in this effort aided by the acquisitions
that were concluded during this financial year, leadership in
fraud management system, expansion of the sales and support
presence globally etc.

During the year, we participated in 23 trade shows – large and
small – across all the four regions that we operate in, namely
Americas, EMEA, APAC and China. We also presented papers at
various conferences around the world. This investment has gone
a long way in positioning your company as a thought leader in
our chosen space. We will persist with such investments and
similar activities in keeping with our stated objective – to be
the global leader in revenue maximization.

2.8.2  Partnerships – During the year, we stepped up our efforts
on the partnerships front considerably. These efforts have resulted
in several fruitful partnerships with technology firms like Alcatel,
Tekelec, MDS, Osix, Sun Microsystems, Teradata etc. These partners,
while bringing us substantial business, also help us offer end-to-
end solutions to meet the requirements of our customers.

2.8.3  Direct marketing - Subex regularly produces white papers
and technology documents that are distributed worldwide to
the industry professionals. This effort helps position Subex as
an organization in the forefront of technology. Further, it leads
to a consulting relationship with customers who look up towards
Subex for guidance and recommendations on benchmarking, good
practices etc. We also publish a newsletter meant for customers
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and other industry constituencies, on a quarterly basis.

Memberships - In order to stay on the leading edge of technology,
Subex actively participates in the deliberations of industry bodies.
Such association also provides an opportunity for Subex to play
a key role in formulating specifications and guidelines for the
industry. Subex is a member of the TeleManagement Forum (TMF),
GSM Association, FIINA, Communications Fraud Control
Association (CFCA), TUFF and National Association of Software
and Services Companies (NASSCOM).

2.9 Quality

Subex is dedicated to maintain the highest levels of quality
standards throughout its operations. Towards this, Subex has
been accredited ISO 9001 certification.

2.10 Employees

Subex had 262 employees and 153 consultants as at March 31,
2005 located at its offices at India, Canada, China, USA and UK.
Subex provides excellent opportunities for professionals to be
involved in leading edge technologies with a view to solve
complex technical problems. This has resulted in an ability to
attract and retain highly qualified professionals. Subex has
employee stock option plans to reward performance. On the whole,
Subex has been able to achieve a high level of retention. Subex
empowers its personnel extensively and provides continuous
training and upgradation of skills.

2.11 Properties

Subex operates from about 33,450 Sq. Ft. of leased premises at
Bangalore in India. During the financial year 2004-05, the company
has moved its Corporate Office and Development Center from
Mahalaxmi Layout, Bangalore to Koramangala, Bangalore. The
company has taken on lease the properties in Denver (US), London
(UK), Beijing (China) and Ottawa (Canada).

3  Outlook – Issues & risks

3.1 Market

3.1.1 The telecom industry is gradually coming out of the downturn.
However, uncertainties continue and capex is low. This anti-
investment climate could persist for some more time.

3.1.2 Subex is fully dependant on the telecom industry. So, any
vagaries in the telecom business environment will considerably
impact the fortunes of the company.

3.1.3 The continuing drag in the industry has resulted in extended
sales cycles. This could result in non-achievement of business
targets in certain quarters or fiscal years.

3.1.4 The extremely competitive nature of the industry has led
to an abnormally high debtor position that has been detrimental
to cash flow. This trend could continue for a few more quarters
before it improves materially.

3.1.5 Certain markets in which Subex sells its products are subject
to foreign exchange repatriation and economic risks, which may
result in either delayed recovery or even non-realization of
revenue. Subex conducts adequate due diligence while venturing
into such markets.

3.1.6 The revenue assurance market is evolving and is likely  to
face uncertainties on the size of the market, opportunities etc.

3.2 Technology

3.2.1 Given the high rate of obsolescence and rapid technological

changes in the domain that Subex operates in, it is essential to
be pro-active to stay ahead of the technological curve. Subex
has set up processes and methodologies to address this threat
and to turn it into a strategic advantage by being in the forefront
of technological evolution. Regular skill upgradation programs
and training sessions that include attending global conferences,
employing specialized consultants etc. are undertaken.

3.2.2 The severe downturn that has resulted in considerable
financial difficulties for the carriers has spurred an unprecedented
interest in tools and technologies to squeeze out as much profits
as possible from the existing investments in the network and
other infrastructure. This keen interest is the catalyst behind
the growth witnessed in the revenue maximization space. We
expect this trend to continue in the years ahead.

3.2.3 Retention of software personnel is another major risk being
faced by software enterprises including Subex. Towards addressing
this issue, Subex provides an empowered atmosphere with
extensive mentoring, career counseling and constant learning
opportunities in cutting edge and challenging technologies.

3.2.4 The revenue assurance space is evolving and the technologies
and tools that will be utilized is currently being defined. INcharge™
has been developed based on our understanding of this unfolding
scenario. Any judgmental errors could prove to be expensive to
the company.

3.3 Statutory obligations

Subex has registered with Software Technology Parks of India
(STPI) for software development activities and has availed
Customs Duties, Sales Tax and Central Excise exemptions. The
non-fulfillment of export obligations may result in penalties as
stipulated by the Government and this may have an impact on
future profitability.

3.4 Legal proceedings

There are no material legal proceedings pending against Subex .

3.5 Foreign exchange

Subex has substantial exposure to foreign exchange related risks
on account of earnings denominated in foreign currency arising
from export of software. The Indian rupee has generally been on
a fluctuating trend against the US dollar during the year and it
is difficult to predict the direction that exchange rates will take,
going forward. Subex hedges its risks appropriately through
forward contracts and has payables denominated in foreign
currency as well, which, to a limited extent, mitigates the losses
suffered on account of fluctuating exchange rates.

3.6 Taxation

3.6.1 Significant tax benefits have been given to software
companies in India. These benefits are presently available to
Subex. However the Government’s policies are subject to change.
Any change may adversely affect its’ post tax profits.

3.6.2 India, being a member of World Trade Organization, may
be required in the coming years to reduce import tariff levels,
thereby exposing the Indian entrepreneurs to global competition.

3.7 Litigation

There is an increasing trend in litigation regarding intellectual
property rights, patents and copyrights in the software industry.
There also exists other corporate legal risks. Subex has no material
litigation pending against it in any court in India or abroad.
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3.8 Contractual obligation

3.8.1 In terms of the contract entered into by Subex with its
customers in the ordinary course of business, it is obliged to
perform and act according to the contractual terms and
regulations.  Failure to fulfill the contractual obligations arising
out of such contracts may expose Subex to financial and other
risks.

3.8.2  The management has taken sufficient measures to cover
all of its contractual risks and does not foresee any major liability
due to its non-fulfillment of any contractual terms and conditions.

4 In addition to the afore-mentioned issues and risks, the
management believes that the following risks may also impact
the operations of Subex adversely

4.1 Risk relating to acquisition: A key element of Subex’s growth
strategy is acquisition of business with activities that are
complementary to those offered by it. Acquisition and merger of an
enterprise has associated risks in the form of personnel, clients and
regulatory issues. The success of the acquisition will depend upon
valuation, the ability to retain the employees and the clients and
further leverage the business of the existing clients of the acquired
company. Timely handling of regulatory issues is also a key factor
in the success of an acquisition. The management believes that it
has the capability and expertise to manage this risk.

5  Key financials and ratio analysis
Amount in Rs. million, except where indicated otherwise

Financial highlights / Year ending March 31 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Total income  1,172.46       891.94     706.41       592.51        557.89       315.86
Export sales  1,086.40       828.53     676.01       573.79        479.59       134.19
Operating profits (EBDIT)     356.74       246.02     162.19         95.67        126.90         65.45
Depreciation & amortization       71.43         42.68       37.98         35.68          20.80           3.77
Profit before tax     261.10       189.04     101.75         47.92        103.94         56.26
Profit after tax     253.03       177.50       96.12         41.84        102.77         50.26
Equity dividend (%) 30% 20% 10% 10% 20% 40%
Share capital     100.67         73.54       73.44         71.23          71.26         35.62
Reserves & surplus  1,132.05       540.94     403.26       458.01        421.82       369.05
Net worth   1,220.03       786.38     615.84       354.10        475.38       386.79
Gross fixed assets      555.42       209.61     161.55       163.81        109.82         50.74
Net fixed assets      367.83         89.66       77.84       109.53          85.53         45.01
Total assets  1,745.12    1,085.76     997.68       896.16        672.06       635.51

Key indicators       

Earnings per share (Rs.) (on year end capital)       25.13         24.14       13.09           5.87          14.42         14.11
Cash earnings per share (Rs.) (on year end capital)       32.23         29.94       18.26         10.88          17.34         15.17
Book value per share (Rs.)     122.48       108.70       85.63         51.54          68.54       112.24
Debt equity ratio (including working capital)         0.23           0.21         0.32           0.46            0.01           0.01
EBDIT/ sales (%) 30.43% 27.58% 22.96% 16.15% 22.75% 20.72%
Net profit margin (%) 21.71% 20.00% 13.61% 7.06% 18.42% 15.91%
Return on year end net worth (%) 20.52% 22.20% 15.29% 11.40% 21.04% 12.57%
Return on year end capital employed (%) 23.48% 25.94% 19.59% 17.90% 25.62% 16.22%

4.2 Risk relating to management of growth: Subex has been
experiencing significant growth. Coupled with acquisitions, this
growth is expected to place a significant demand on the
management and resources. Subex has developed and improved
upon the operational, financial and internal controls & reporting
systems to mitigate this risk.

4.3 Variability of quarterly operating results: The quarterly
operating results of Subex have varied in the past due to reasons
like seasonal pattern of hardware and software capital spending
by customers, information technology investment trends,
achievement of milestones in the execution of projects, hiring
of additional staff and timing and integration of acquired
businesses. Hence, the past operating results and period to period
comparisons may not indicate future performance. The
management is attempting to mitigate this risk through
expansion of client base geographically and increase of steady
annuity revenue.
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Part II: Commentary on the financial statements

1 Share capital

1.1 The company had both equity share capital and preference
share capital at the beginning of the year. During the year, the
entire preference shareholding has been converted into equity
share capital.

1.2 Of the equity paid-up capital, the company had issued the
following shares towards consideration other than cash.

• 115,000 shares of Rs. 10 each, towards the balances in the
current account of partners, Mr. Subash Menon and Mr. Alex
P. J, on the takeover of Subex Systems, a partnership firm,
by the company during 1993-94.

• 4,626,940 shares of Rs. 10 each to all eligible shareholders
as on March 31, 1999 in the ratio of 1:1 by capitalizing the
General Reserves.

• 12,840 shares of Rs. 10 each to the erstwhile owners of
Subex Technologies, Inc., towards part consideration of
the cost of acquisition of that company at Rs. 1,023 per
share during 1999-2000.

1.3 During the year, the company issued 34,106 shares of Rs. 10
each to various employees on exercise of stock options granted
under the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP – II).

1.4 During the year, the outstanding preference shareholding of
1,887,000 Redeemable Optionally Convertible Cumulative
Preference Shares (ROCCPS) of Rs. 98 each held by Intel Capital
Corporation, UTI Venture Funds and Toronto Dominion Bank have
been converted into equivalent number of equity shares, at the
option of the shareholders, as per terms of the ROCCPS issue.

1.5 During the year, the company has issued Foreign Currency
Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) amounting to US$ 10 million at a
coupon of LIBOR plus 200 basis points redeemable at par for a
tenor of 5 years. The bonds are convertible at any time during
the tenor at a price ranging between Rs. 270 and Rs. 300 per
share. Consequently, at the option of the bondholders, 792,306
equity shares were allotted to the holders upon conversion of
FCCBs held by them. The said equity shares were converted at
Rs. 300 per share, thereby adding Rs. 290 for each share as
share premium.

1.6 There are no calls in arrears.

2 Reserves and surplus

2.1 Capital reserve of Rs. 13 million was created by credit of the
notional premium on 12,840 equity shares of Rs. 10 each valued
at a price of Rs. 1,013 per share and issued to the owners of
IVth Generation, Inc., USA  as part consideration for the transfer
of their shareholding to Subex.

2.2 Share premium account represents the premium collected
on:

• 971,000 equity shares issued at a premium of Rs. 65 per
share through an initial public offer in 1999-2000.

• 330,800 equity shares issued at a premium of Rs. 740 per
share to mutual funds and bodies corporate on a preferential
basis during 1999-2000.

• 1,887,000 equity shares issued at a premium of Rs. 88 per
share to holders of ROCCPS on conversion of preferential

shares of Rs. 98  each, namely Intel Capital, Toronto Dominion
Bank and UTI Venture Funds.

• 792,306 equity shares issued at a premium of Rs. 290 per
share to holders of FCCBs on conversion of the bonds at a
price of Rs. 300 per share.

• 34,106 equity shares allotted to the employees under
ESOP - II as per the provisions of the scheme.

2.3 A sum of Rs. 158.96 million being the cost of intellectual
property rights acquired from Magardi, Inc., in 2001-02, has
been written off against the share premium account, in terms of
the approval of the shareholders in an Extraordinary General
Meeting and the subsequent confirmation of the Honourable
High Court of Karnataka under Section 78 and 100 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

2.4 The company has transferred Rs. 25.50 million (Previous year,
Rs. 13.5 million) to general reserves during the year.

2.5 In accordance with the guidelines issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accounts of India on Accounting for Deferred Taxes, a
net gain of Rs. 5.55 million has been recorded in the profit and
loss account, on account of recognition of deferred tax asset as
at year end, amounting to Rs. 3.98 million.

2.6 In accordance with the guidelines issued by SEBI under the
ESOS & ESPS Scheme 1999, the company has created a reserve
towards the excess of market price of the underlying equity shares
as on the date of the grant of the option over the exercise price
of the option, to be adjusted over the period of vesting. The
amount adjusted and credited to reserves as at March 31, 2005
is Rs. 4.76 million (Previous year, Rs. 3.75 million).

3 Secured loans

3.1 The company has entirely repaid the Medium Term Loan (MTL)
of Rs. 15.73 million outstanding at the beginning of the year as
well as a substantial portion of its working capital loans
amounting to Rs. 119.03 million at the beginning of the year.

3.2 The interest rates and bank charges are subject to the credit
policy of the Government and the Bank. The credit facilities
with UTI Bank Ltd. are secured by first charge on all fixed assets
of the company, both present and future, book debts and stock.

3.3 The secured loan of Rs. 13.89 million (Previous year,
Rs. 12.45 million) pertains to motor cars financed by the company
through hire purchase scheme with the financiers and is secured
by hypothecation of the vehicles.

4 Unsecured loans

4.1 The amount of Rs. 212.99 million (corresponding to US$
4,850,000) represents the portion of FCCBs not converted into
equity shares. The bonds carry interest of US$ LIBOR plus 200
basis points and are eligible for conversion into equity shares at
any time before December 2009 as per the terms of issue. These
bonds are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

4.2 During the year, the company has entirely repaid unsecured
short term loan taken from the companies under same
management in earlier years, Rs. 1.75 million from Subex Holdings
Private Limited. The interest paid during the year is Rs. 0.19
million (Previous year, Rs. 0.53 million).
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5 Deferred payment consideration

5.1 Deferred payment consideration of Rs. 18.88 million at the
beginning of the year, pertains to liability of the company to
the erstwhile owners of Subex Technologies, Inc., formerly IVth
Generation, Inc., USA. In view of non-receipt of certain
receivables pre-existing in the erstwhile company’s books at the
time of acquisition, the company has agreed with the sellers for
a corresponding reduction in the acquisition price. Accordingly,
the company has, pursuant to approval of the Reserve Bank of
India, set off the above liability against the carrying value of
the investment in the subsidiary. A corresponding adjustment
has been made in the subsidiary’s books of accounts by adjusting
the amount of uncollected receivables from the additional paid
in capital.

5.2 The amount of deferred payment consideration outstanding
as at year-end amounting to Rs. 22.75 million represents the
portion of consideration payable to Alcatel, UK for transfer of
IPRs pertaining to their FMS business which the company acquired
during the year. This consideration is to be discharged by way of
discounts to Alcatel, UK on sales prospected by them for the
company’s products under a reseller agreement with them.

6 Fixed assets

6.1 During the year, the company acquired intellectual property
rights comprising of technology, knowhow, source code and
software connected with the fraud management software
businesses from Alcatel, UK and Lightbridge, USA for an amount
of Rs. 172.81 million and Rs. 141.69 million respectively,
including expenses incurred in connection with the said
acquisitions.

6.2 The value of intangible assets i.e., IPRs and goodwill are
recorded in the books of accounts, based on a valuation report
by independent valuers.

Consequent to the acquisition, revenues recorded for the year
include revenues arising from these acquisitions as well.

6.3 During the year, the company added Rs. 350.36 million to
its gross block. The company disposed off certain assets no longer
required. The company has assets worth Rs. 21.75 million
(Previous year, Rs. 22.69 million) under hire purchase agreements
and none (Previous year, Nil) under lease finance.

6.4 The capital expenditure for 2005-06 is estimated at Rs. 40
million. The company estimates that it would have adequate
internal accruals and liquid funds to fund the capital expenditure.
The company may also take recourse to borrowings, to meet its
capital acquisition program in case of need.

7 Investments

7.1 The company holds certain investments in Government
Securities like Indira Vikas Patra, which are deposited, as per
stipulations for registration, with various Government
Departments.

7.2 During 1999, the company had acquired the whole of the
outstanding common stocks numbering 3,000 of no par value of
IVth Generation, Inc., New Jersey, USA. Consequent to the
acquisition, IVth Generation, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of
the company, has been renamed as “Subex Technologies, Inc.”
The investments are carried at cost, including advisory fees,
brokerage and syndication fees for facilitating the investment.

7.3 The company has received an independent valuation report
of Subex Technologies, Inc., based on which there is no
impairment in the value of the investment.

7.4 During the year, the company has subscribed to the entire
share capital of Subex Technologies Limited (STL), a wholly-
owned subsidiary company for a cost of Rs. 0.50 million. As at
the balance sheet date, the company is yet to commence business.

8 Inventories

8.1 The company’s stock of inventory consists of certain spares
and accessories maintained for providing support to the clients
of the erstwhile telecom system integration activities.  All these
are valued in accordance with the accounting policy consistently
adopted by the company. A periodic review of the slow moving
stock is conducted and appropriate provisions are made for
anticipated losses, if any.

8.2 The company does not value the unbilled software products
and services as at the year end.

9 Sundry debtors

9.1 The major customers of the company are the telecom and
cellular operators overseas and in India. The receivables are spread
over a large customer base.  There is no significant concentration
of credit risk on a single customer.

9.2 All the debtors are generally considered good and realizable
and necessary provision has been made for debts considered to
be bad and doubtful. The level of sundry debtors is normal and
is in tune with business trends.

9.3 Sundry Debtors as a percentage of total revenue is 63% as
against 68% in the previous year.

9.4 The age profile is as given below :
Amount in Rs. million

Period, in days March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Value % Value %

Less than 90 days 314.14 42.98 240.53 40.35

90 – 180 days 210.07 28.74 148.87 24.98

More than 180 days 206.74 28.28 206.66 34.67

Total 730.95 100.00 596.06 100.00

9.5 The management believes that the overall composition and
condition of sundry debtors is satisfactory.

The company has made provisions for doubtful debts during the
year amounting to Rs. 4.30 million (Previous year, Nil).

9.6 During the year, the company has factored a portion of its
receivables amounting to US$ 5 million with UTI Bank Ltd.

9.7 Bad debts pertaining to services division activity written off
during the year is Rs. 0.45 million (Previous year, Nil)

10 Cash and bank balances

10.1 The bank balances in India include both rupee accounts
and foreign currency accounts. A significant portion of these
balances include fixed deposit of Rs. 219.02 million with UTI
Bank Ltd.

10.2 Cash and bank balances constitute 18.02% of the total
assets as against 3.46% in the previous year.
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11 Loans and advances

11.1 Advances recoverable in cash, kind or value to be received
are primarily towards pre-payments for value to be received.
Advance income tax, net of provision for taxation represents
payments made towards tax liability pending assessment and
refunds due.

11.2 Deposits represent electricity deposit, telephone deposits
and advances of like nature. The company has taken on lease
several buildings for operations and facilities in various cities
and also for housing its staff upon payment of Rs. 8.99 million
(Previous year, Rs. 2.8 million) as rental and maintenance
deposits.

12 Current liabilities

12.1 Sundry creditors for capital goods represent amount payable
to vendors for supply of capital assets and to financiers for
supply of capital assets on hire purchase basis.

12.2 Sundry creditors for goods represent amount payable to
vendors for supply of goods.

12.3 Sundry creditors - Others include creditors for operational
expenses, accrued salaries and benefits and advances received
from clients for delivery of future sales.

13 Provisions

13.1 Provisions for taxation represent income tax, dividend tax
and wealth tax liability. The provision would be set off upon
payment of tax. The proposed dividend represents the final
dividend recommended to the shareholders by the Board, which
would be paid after the annual general meeting.

14 Preliminary expenses

14.1 Expenses incurred in connection with the public offer,
follow-on offer and bonus issue of shares by the company are
being written off over a period of 5 years. As at the end of the
year no balance remains to be carried forward on this account.

15 Financial instruments

15.1 Letters of credit

The company has letters of credit amounting to Rs. 5.24 million
outstanding as at year-end. No such liability was outstanding in
respect of the previous year.

15.2 Guarantees

The company has outstanding guarantees for various purposes
amounting to Rs. 5.17 million and Rs. 2.20 million for the year
ended 2005 and 2004 respectively. These guarantees are in the
nature of performance guarantees and bid bonds and are subject
to the risk of performance by the company.

16 Profit & loss account

16.1 Income

The company derives its income from providing software
development services, sale of software products and from
integration and installation of test and measurement solutions
and cellular coverage solutions. The segment-wise break-up of
income is given in the following table.

Amount in Rs. million

Particulars 2004-2005 2003-2004

Value % Value %

Software services 537.53 46.12% 482.50 54.87%

Software products 627.97 53.88% 396.75 45.13%

Total 1165.50 100.00 879.25 100.00

16.2 Geographically, the company earns income from export of
software services to USA and software products to all countries.
The software products revenue grew by 58%, during the year
2004-2005.

17 Non operating income

17.1 Non-operating income consists of income derived by the
company from interest on deposit with bank, insurance claims
received towards damages of assets, VAT refund, rental from
sub-lease of premises and write-back of provisions no longer
required.

18 Expenditure

18.1 The staff cost increased to Rs. 674.02 million from
Rs. 528.19 million during the previous year on account of new
recruitment, increments and increase in onsite consultancy
services in US.

18.2 The administration and other expenses were reduced to
9.3% of total income during the year as against 11.44% during
the previous year.

19 Operating profits

19.1 During the year, the company earned an operating profit
(profit before interest, depreciation and tax) of Rs. 356.74 million
being 30.43% of total income as against Rs. 246.02 million at
27.58% during the previous year. The operating profit has
increased on account of higher product sales.

20 Interest & bank charges

20.1 The company incurred an expenditure of Rs. 24.22 million
as against Rs. 14.30 million  during the previous year. The increase
is on account of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs)
issued during the year. The interest on FCCBs alone amounted to
Rs. 11.09 million.

21 Depreciation

21.1 The provision for depreciation for the year increased to
Rs. 71.17 million as compared to Rs. 41.20 million on account
of the depreciation of IPR and goodwill arising out of the
acquisition of the fraud management businesses of Alcatel and
Lightbridge.

The intangible assets are being depreciated over 5 years in
accordance with the company’s assessment of useful life thereof.
Accordingly, an amount of Rs. 30.83 million has been depreciated
in the financial year under review.

22 Provision for tax

22.1 The company has provided for its tax liability in India and
overseas after considering the exemptions for income from
software services and products under the various applicable tax
enactments.
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23 Net profit

23.1 The net profit of the company amounted to Rs. 253.03
million as against Rs. 177.50 million during the previous year.
The company earned a net profit margin of 21.71% to total
income as against 19.90 % during the previous year.

24 Earnings per share

24.1 Earnings per share computed on the basis of weighted
average number of common stock outstanding as on the balance
sheet date, was Rs. 27.78 per share as against Rs. 20.68 per
share for the previous year. The earnings per share diluted, for
the year was Rs. 26.53 as against Rs. 18.63 for the previous
year. Shares available (not allocated) with Subex Foundation
under ESOP 1999 have been fully considered in the calculation
of basic EPS.

25 Foreign exchange difference

25.1 An amount of Rs. 0.87 million has been considered as
income during the current year compared to expense of Rs. 25.65
million  during the previous year, on account of foreign exchange
differences arising due to timing differences between accrual of
income/ expense and receipt/ payment of the same.

26 Depreciation on software and assets costing less than
Rs. 5,000 each

26.1 During the year, the company charged depreciation at one
hundred percent in respect of assets costing less than Rs. 5,000
each, amounting to Rs. 0.10 million.  (Previous year, Rs. 0.10
million). Cost of software charged off to revenue during the year
amounted to Rs. 1.05 million (Previous year, Rs. 0.19 million).
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SUBEX SYSTEMS LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Subex Systems Limited, as at March 31, 2005, the Profit and Loss Account and the
Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on that dated annexed thereto. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the management of the company.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in India.  These Standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An
audit includes, examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the
overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 issued by the Government of India, in terms of Section 227 (4A) of
the Companies Act 1956, we give in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order
to the extent applicable to this Company.

4. Further, to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that:

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit.

(b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company, so far as it appears from our
examination of the books and proper returns adequate for the purpose of our audit have been received from the Company’s branch,
in the United States of America (US Branch) not visited by us.

(c) the report on the accounts of the US Branch audited by the Branch Auditors has been forwarded to us and has been dealt with by
us in preparing this report.

(d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in compliance
with the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956.

(e) the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
accounts and the audited branch returns.

(f) on the basis of written representations received from the Directors of the Company, as at March 31, 2005 and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, we report that none of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2005 from being appointed as a Director
in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

5. in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read together
with the notes thereon, give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required, give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2005; and

(b) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account of the profit for the year ended on that date.

(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

V. Srikumar
Bangalore Partner
April 28, 2005 Membership No. 84494



49Annual Report 2004-05

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT (REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 3 OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE)

1. The provisions of clauses i(c), iii(b) to (d), (vi), (viii), (x), (xii), (xiii), (xiv), (xv), (xviii), (xix), as contained in para 4 and 5 of
the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2003, are not applicable to the Company for the current year.

2. In respect of its fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Some of the fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the management in accordance with a programme of verification,
which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information
and explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

3. In respect of its inventories:

(a) As explained to us, inventories were physically verified during the year by the management at reasonable intervals.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verification of inventories
followed by the management were reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper records of its
inventories and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

4. In respect of loans, secured or unsecured, granted or taken by the Company to or from companies, firms or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, according to the information and explanations given to us:

(a) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured during the year.

(b) The Company had taken a loan from Subex Holdings Pvt. Ltd. At the year-end, the outstanding balance of such loans taken
aggregated to Rs. Nil and the maximum amount involved during the year was Rs. 2,073,508.

(c) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions of such loans are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of
the Company.

(d) The payment of principal amount and interest in respect of such loan is regular.

5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control procedures commensurate
with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods
and services and we have not observed any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in such internal controls.

6. In respect of contracts and arrangements entered in the register maintained in pursuance of section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956,
to the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and explanations given to us:

(a) The particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in Section 301 that needed to be entered into the register, maintained
under the said section have been so entered.

(b) Where each of such transactions (excluding loans reported under paragraph 4 above), made in pursuance of contracts or arrangements,
is in excess of Rs. 500,000 in respect to any party, the transactions have been made at prices which are prima facie reasonable
having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

7. In our opinion, the internal audit functions carried out during the year by a firm of Chartered Accountants appointed by the
management have been commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

8. In respect of Statutory dues,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Excise
Duty, Customs Duty, Sales Tax, cess and any other material statutory dues with the appropriate authorities during the year and there are no
undisputed statutory dues as noted above is outstanding for a period more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us there are no disputed sales tax, income tax, customs duty, wealth tax,
service tax, excise duty and cess which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2005 on account of any dispute.

9. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the (re)payment
of dues to financial institutions and banks.

10. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, term loans
availed by the Company were, prima facie, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained
other than temporary deployment pending application.

11. According to the information and explanation given to us, and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the company,
funds raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long term investment.

12. During the period covered by our audit report, the Company has not raised any money by public issue.

13. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the
Company was noticed or reported during the year.

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

V. Srikumar
Bangalore Partner
April 28, 2005 M. No. 84494
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT

Schedules March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Sources of funds
Shareholders’ funds

Share capital A 100,672,230 258,464,110

Share application money 318,640 243,535

Reserve and surplus B 1,132,054,073 1,233,044,943 540,940,295 799,647,940

Loan funds

Secured loans C 73,282,446 147,203,061

Unsecured loans D 212,987,750 1,748,508

Deferred payment consideration towards acquisition

- IVth Generation, Inc, USA - 18,883,619

- Alcatel, FMS division 22,754,000 309,024,196 - 167,835,188

Deferred tax liability  (net) - 1,570,000

Total 1,542,069,139 969,053,128
Application of funds
Fixed assets E
Gross block 555,422,291 209,167,886

Less: Depreciation 188,059,593 119,948,661

Net block 367,362,698 89,219,225

Capital work in progress 465,431 437,108

367,828,129 89,656,333

Investments F 308,518,947 326,902,626

Deferred tax asset  (net) 3,975,809 -
Current assets, loans & advances

Inventories G 62,589 138,025

Sundry debtors H 730,950,484 596,066,529

Cash & bank balances I 277,911,743 33,607,318

Loans & advances J 55,871,375 39,130,962

1,064,796,191 668,942,834

Less: Current liabilities & provisions K 203,049,937 116,705,607

Net current assets 861,746,254 552,237,227

Miscellaneous expenditure
(To the extent not written off or adjusted) L - 256,942

Total 1,542,069,139 969,053,128
Notes on accounts R

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the balance sheet

In terms of our report of even date

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath V. Balaji Bhat
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director Director

V. Srikumar Rajkumar C
Partner Company Secretary & Legal Counsel
Membership No. 84494

Bangalore
April 28, 2005

Amount in Rs.
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Schedules March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Income
Sales & services 1,165,502,087 879,250,709

Other income M 6,962,229 12,685,486

Total 1,172,464,316 891,936,195
Expenditure
Materials consumed N 31,827,135 15,637,526

Personnel costs O 674,022,870 528,186,583

Other operating, selling and
administrative expenses P 109,874,704 102,089,347

Financial costs Q 24,216,276 14,301,750

Miscellaneous expenses amortized 256,942 1,474,724

Depreciation E 71,168,952 41,201,100

Total 911,366,879 702,891,030
Profit before taxation 261,097,437 189,045,165
Provision for taxation

- Current 13,614,828 7,924,143

- Deferred (5,545,809) 8,069,019 3,620,000 11,544,143

Profit after taxation 253,028,418 177,501,022

Add: Balance brought forward from previous year 259,548,226 137,694,645

Profit available for appropriation 512,576,644 315,195,667
Appropriation
Transfer to general reserve 25,500,000 13,500,000

Dividend

- Equity shares - Interim dividend 9,274,917 -

- Equity shares - Proposed final dividend 20,134,446 14,707,622

Dividend on preference shares 4,651,061 34,060,424 22,652,990 37,360,612

Tax on distributed profits 4,518,432 4,786,829

Surplus carried to balance sheet 448,497,788 259,548,226

512,576,644 315,195,667
Earnings per share - Basic 27.78 20.68
Earnings per share - Diluted 26.53 18.63

Notes on accounts  R

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the profit & loss account

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

In terms of our report of even date

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath V. Balaji Bhat
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director Director

V. Srikumar Rajkumar C
Partner Company Secretary & Legal Counsel
Membership No. 84494

Bangalore
April 28, 2005

Amount in Rs.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax and before extraordinary items 261,097,437  189,045,165
Adjustments for
a) Depreciation and amortization 71,425,894 42,675,824
b) Interest/ dividend income (1,681,501) (1,676,014)
c) Interest on borrowings 24,216,276 14,301,750
d) Assets written off/ loss on sale 829,470 1,273,594
e) Profit on sale of assets (114,895) (204,833)
f) Employee compensation expenses 1,008,361 1,580,438
g) Provision for doubtful debts 4,295,276 -
h) Direct taxes paid (7,554,024) (12,026,396)
Operating profit before working capital changes 353,522,294 234,969,528
Adjustments for
a) Trade and other receivables (139,179,232) (196,386,727)
b) Loans and advances (17,588,983) (8,103,993)
c) Inventories 75,436 59,998
d) Trade and other payables 81,253,877 10,045,553
Cash generated from operations A 278,083,392 40,584,358
Cash flow from investing activities
a) Purchase of fixed assets (350,824,055) (55,391,426)
b) Sale/ disposal of fixed assets 768,732 1,305,397
c) Sale/ purchase of investments (499,940) 1,000
d) Deferred payment consideration towards acquisition 3,870,381 (65,337,336)
e) Reversal of investment carrying value 18,883,619 1,782,987
Net cash from investing activities B (327,801,263) (117,639,378)
Cash flow from financing activities
a) Proceeds from issue of share capital 217,939,080 32,135,049
b) Proceeds/ repayments from borrowings (net) (75,669,123) (50,147,439)
c) FCCB (to the extent not converted) 212,987,750
d) Dividends paid (43,304,005) (21,054,836)
e) Interest paid on borrowings (19,612,907) (14,301,750)
f) Interest received 1,681,501 1,676,014
Net cash from financing activities C 294,022,296 (51,692,962)
Net increase in cash or cash equivalents  [A + B + C] 244,304,425 (128,747,982)
Cash or cash equivalents at the start of the year 33,607,318 162,355,300
Cash or cash equivalents at the close of the year 277,911,743 33,607,318

Note: Cash & cash equivalents include balance with scheduled banks on dividend account and GIC deposit account of Rs. 895,009
(Previous year, Rs. 1,235,550) which are not available for use by the company.

Amount in Rs.

In terms of our report of even date

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath V. Balaji Bhat
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director Director

V. Srikumar Rajkumar C
Partner Company Secretary & Legal Counsel
Membership No. 84494

Bangalore
April 28, 2005
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SCHEDULES TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT

March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Schedule - A
Share capital
Authorised
32,100,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 321,000,000 111,800,000
2,000,000 Redeemable Optionally Convertible Cumulative 196,000,000 196,000,000
Preference Shares (ROCCPS) of Rs. 98 each
Total 517,000,000 307,800,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up
A) Equity

10,067,223 equity shares of Rs. 10 each
(Previous year, 7,353,811) 100,672,230 73,538,110
Of the above
a) 115,000 shares of Rs. 10 each were allotted for

consideration other than for cash;
b) 4,626,940 shares of Rs. 10 each are allotted as bonus

shares by capitalisation of general reserve;
c) 12,840 shares of Rs. 10 each are allotted in part

settlement of cost of acquisition of subsidiary
B) Preference

Nil (Previous year, 1,887,000) Redeemable Optionally Convertible
Cumulative Preference Shares (ROCCPS) of Rs. 98  each - 184,926,000

Total 100,672,230 258,464,110
Schedule - B
Reserves and surplus
Capital reserve 13,006,920 13,006,920
General reserve - opening balance 98,302,608 84,802,608
Add:  Additions during the year 25,500,000 123,802,608 13,500,000 98,302,608

Securities premium account - opening balance 166,327,505 165,577,841
Add:  Net additions during the year 375,655,855 541,983,360 749,664 166,327,505

Employee stock options outstanding 10,428,860 6,936,691
Less: Deferred employees compensation expenses 5,665,463 4,763,397 3,181,655 3,755,036
Profit & loss account 448,497,788 259,548,226

Total 1,132,054,073 540,940,295
Schedule - C
Secured loans
State Bank of India - MTL - 15,725,000

(Amount repayable within one year Rs. Nil)
(Previous year, Rs. 10,020,000)

State Bank of India -  Cash credit - 51,018,213
State Bank of India - FCNR (B) loan 59,387,250 68,010,000

[Amount repayable within one year: Rs. 59,387,250)
(Previous year, Rs. 68,010,000)

(Secured by first charge on all fixed assets of the company, both
present and future, book debts, stock, personal guarantee
of two Directors and equitable mortgage of industrial land)
Hire purchase 13,895,196 12,449,848
(Secured by hypothecation of motor cars)

[Amount repayable within one year: Rs. 4,568,531)
(Previous year, Rs. 4,223,366)

Total 73,282,446 147,203,061
Schedule - D
Unsecured loans
Inter corporate deposits - 1,748,508
Foreign currency convertible bonds (Refer Note II.5 of Schedule R) 212,987,750 -

212,987,750 1,748,508

Amount in Rs.
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March 31, 2005  March 31, 2004

Schedule - F
Investments
(Unquoted at cost)
Long term - Non trade
In Government securities - I.V.P 1,000 1,000
Long term - Trade
Subex Technologies, Inc. (Wholly-owned subsidiary, 308,018,007 326,901,626
incorporated in U.S.A, common stock 3,000 shares, fully
paid up, of no par value)
Long term - Trade
Subex Technologies Ltd (Wholly-owned subsidiary, 499,940 -
incorporated in India, common stock 49,994 shares, fully
paid up, at par value)
Total 308,518,947 326,902,626
Schedule - G
Inventories (at cost)
Traded goods 62,589 138,025
Total 62,589 138,025
Schedule - H
Sundry debtors
(Unsecured)
Outstanding for more than six months

- Considered good 206,737,371 206,663,550
- Considered doubtful 23,938,870 22,975,896

230,676,241 229,639,446
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 23,938,870 206,737,371 22,975,896 206,663,550
Others 524,213,113 389,402,979
Total (considered good) 730,950,484 596,066,529
Schedule - I :
Cash & bank balances
Cash on hand 425,892 285,624
Cheques on hand - 1,721,759
Balance with scheduled banks

- in current account in Indian Rupees 10,350,189 3,322,211
- in deposit account in Indian Rupees 219,021,499 564,346
- in EEFC account in foreign currency 2,438,103 1,429,756

Balance with non-scheduled banks
- Deposit with Royal Bank of Canada 895,009 846,602
- in Current account with Royal Bank of Canada, Canada 576,781 544,038

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 2,292,382)
- in Checking account with First Union Bank, New Jersey 18,108,364 23,449,091

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 443,908,601)
- in money market account with First Union Bank, New Jersey 23,423,122
- (Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 367,000,000)
- in Hellenic Bank - CYP account, Cyprus 1,548 145,968

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 700,636)
- in Hellenic Bank - USD account -  Cyprus 7,593 73,173

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 1,649,221)
- in Bank of China - RMB account - China 495,853 697,413

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 1,116,187)
- in Bank of China - USD account - China 766,318 527,337

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 902,945)
- in First National Bank of Colorado - USD Account - CO 1,398,966 -

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 5,729,841)
- in HSBC Bank - GBP account - Slough, London 2,506 -

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 21,167,214)

Total 277,911,743 33,607,318

SCHEDULES TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT

Amount in Rs.



56 Annual Report 2004-05

March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Schedule - J

Loans & advances

(Unsecured, considered good, subject to confirmation)

Loans and advances recoverable in cash
or in kind or for value to be received 25,371,830 11,783,732

Advance income tax including TDS 9,841,828 10,690,398

Other Deposits 20,657,717 16,656,832

Total 55,871,375 39,130,962

Schedule - K
Current liabilities & provisions
Sundry creditors

Sundry Creditors 46,882,378 20,343,772

(other than Small Scale Industrial undertaking)

Advance received from customers 68,936,388 8,848,839

Duties & taxes 9,655,614 5,819,039

Subex Technologies, Inc. (Net) (Wholly-owned subsidiary) 36,686,755 41,292,240

Unclaimed dividends (Refer Note II.17.3 of Schedule R) 301,227 162,462,362 324,581 76,628,471

Provisions

Taxation 15,884,372 10,672,138

Dividends 22,071,631 26,065,372

Tax on proposed dividends 2,631,572 40,587,575 3,339,626 40,077,136

Total 203,049,937 116,705,607

Schedule - L
Miscellaneous expenditure
(To the extent not written off or adjusted)

Share issue expenses - 256,942

Total - 256,942

SCHEDULES TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT

Amount in Rs.
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March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Schedule - M
Other income
Interest received  (Gross, TDS Rs. 51,510,
Previous year, Rs. 194,853) 1,681,501 1,676,014

Other income received 3,665,399 3,723,051

Creditors no longer payable written back 128,861 3,536,021

Exchange fluctuation account 869,400 -

Rent received 617,068 3,750,400

Total 6,962,229 12,685,486

Schedule - N
Materials, finished goods consumed
Consumption of raw materials and bought out components

Purchase of systems & solutions 31,751,699 15,577,528

(Increase)/ decrease in finished goods

Opening stock - finished goods 138,025 198,023

Less: Closing stock - finished goods 62,589 75,436 138,025 59,998

Total 31,827,135 15,637,526

Schedule - O
Personnel costs
Salaries, wages & allowances 166,757,862 88,362,324

Contribution to provident fund and other funds 4,737,399 3,489,108

Other staff related costs 14,673,410 10,285,049

Sub contract charges 487,854,199 426,050,102

Total 674,022,870 528,186,583

SCHEDULES TO THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Amount in Rs.
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March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Schedule - P
Other operating, selling and
administrative expenses
Software purchases 1,047,017 192,806

Rent 11,882,243 8,132,166

Power, fuel and water charges 3,418,257 2,189,506

Repairs & maintenance others 3,310,730 1,547,680

Insurance 1,459,299 826,234

Communication costs 10,347,307 4,731,130

Printing & stationery 1,075,134 818,111

Travelling & conveyance 40,360,808 27,651,454

Directors’ sitting fees 32,500 30,500

Rates & taxes including filing fees 3,787,731 503,346

Advertisement & business promotion 15,407,617 13,597,004

Consultancy charges 5,073,993 7,162,826

Bad debts written off 448,425 -

Warranty expenses - 1,416,767

Provision for doubtful debts 4,295,276 -

Loss on sale of asset & assets written off 392,362 1,273,594

Exchange fluctuation account (net) - 25,649,186

Miscellaneous expenses 7,536,005 6,367,037

Total 109,874,704 102,089,347

Schedule - Q
Financial costs
Interest on fixed loans 1,126,721 1,715,117

Other interest & bank charges 23,089,555 12,586,633

Total 24,216,276 14,301,750

SCHEDULES TO THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Amount in Rs.
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Schedule – R

I. Significant accounting policies

I.1. Basis for preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention in accordance with the applicable Accounting
Principles in India, the Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, as adopted consistently
by the company. Revenues are recognised and expenses accounted
on their accrual, including provisions/ adjustments for committed
obligations and amounts determined as payable or receivable
during the year.

I.2. Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
India GAAP requires that management makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue
and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

I.3. Revenue recognition

Sales are recognised on the dispatch of goods to customers and
are recorded net of discounts, rebates for price adjustment,
rejections, shortages in transit, taxes and duties but include
wherever applicable, export incentives.

Revenue from software development is recognised on the basis
of chargeable time or achievement of prescribed milestones as
relevant to each contract.

Contracts for sale of software licences include fees for transfer
of software licences (which normally coincides with delivery),
installation and commissioning.  Activities relating to installation
and commissioning involve minimal time and cost and are not
subject to uncertainties. Revenues from composite contracts
wherein fees for software licenses and implementation/
commissioning fees are not identifiable separately are recognized
on transfer of the software licenses and a provision is made for
the estimated costs relating to the installation and
commissioning. In the case of contracts where the fees for
software licenses and implementation costs are identified
separately, revenues from software licenses are recognized on
transfer of software licenses and revenues from implementation
are recognized on completion of implementation and
commissioning.

Interest on investments and deposits are booked on a time
proportion basis taking into account the amounts invested and
the rate of interest.

Agency commission is accrued on shipment of consignment by
principal.

Maintenance and service income is recognised on accrual basis.

I.4. Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition inclusive of freight,
duties, taxes and interest on borrowed money allocated to and
utilised for fixed assets up to the date of capitalisation and
other direct expenditure incurred on ongoing projects. Assets
acquired on hire purchase are capitalised at gross value and
interest thereon is charged to revenue.

I.5. Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the useful lives of assets. Depreciation is charged on pro-rata
basis for assets purchased/sold during the year.

The rates of depreciation adopted on the assets of the company
are as under ;

Particulars Rate of depreciation

Plant & machinery 20.00 %
Computers 25.00 %
Vehicles 20.00 %
Furniture & fixtures 20.00 %
Intangible assets (IPR, goodwill) 20.00 %

Individual assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated in
full, in the year of purchase.

I.6. Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value,
after providing for cost of obsolescence and other anticipated
losses, wherever considered necessary. Cost includes the
aggregate of all expenditure incurred in bringing the inventories
to the present condition and situation.

I.7. Employee stock option plans

For the shares granted/ allocated under Employee Stock Option
Plan - I (ESOP - I), the Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
guidelines are not followed, since the scheme was formulated
prior to the promulgation of the guidelines.

Employee stock options under ESOP - II are accounted in
accordance with the guidelines stipulated by SEBI. The difference
between the market price of the shares underlying the options
granted on the date of grant of option and the option price is
expensed as “Employees’ Compensation” over the period of
vesting.

I.8. Retirement benefits to employees

The company’s liability towards retirement benefits in the form
of provident fund is fully provided and charged to expenditure.
The company has entered into an agreement with LIC of India
for managing the gratuity liability through a fund, the premium
for which is funded by the company and charged to expenditure
on accrual basis. Leave encashment benefits is accounted for as
an estimated liability as at the date of the balance sheet.

I.9. Research and development

Expenses incurred on research and developments are charged to
revenue in the same year. Fixed asset purchased for research
and development are capitalized and depreciated as per the
company’s policy.

I.10. Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at
the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at year end
are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
balance sheet. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are carried at cost. Exchange differences on settlement
or restatement are adjusted in the profit & loss account.
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Assets and liabilities of the foreign branches are translated into
Indian rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing as at the balance
sheet date. Revenue and expenses are translated into Indian
rupees at yearly average exchange rates prevailing during the year.

I.11. Investments

Long term investments are stated at cost. Diminution in the value
of investments other than temporary in nature is provided for.

I.12. Income taxes

Income tax comprises the current tax provision under the tax
payable method and the net change in the deferred tax asset or
liability in the year. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying values of the assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets are
recognized subject to management’s judgment that realization
is virtually certain. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be
received or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized in the income statement
in the period of enactment of the change.

I.13. Cash flow statement

Cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the
indirect method prescribed in Accounting Standard 3, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

I.14. Securities issue expenses

Expenses incurred during the initial public offer, follow on offer
and issue of bonus shares are amortised over 5 years. Other
issue expenses are charged to the securities premium account.

I.15. Provisions

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present
obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect
of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not
discounted to its present value and are determined based on
best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

II. Notes to accounts

II.1. Deferred income taxes

a) Provision for income taxes has been made in terms of
Accounting Standard 22 “Accounting for Taxes on Income”.
Deferred tax assets are subject to a valuation allowance that
reduces the amount recognized to that which is more likely than
not to  be realized.

Movement in deferred tax asset Amount in Rs.

2004-05 2003-04

Net deferred tax asset/
(liability) at April 1,2004 (1,570,000) 2,050,000

Add: Tax benefits/(charge)
for current year 5,545,809 (3,620,000)

Net deferred tax asset/
(liability) at March 31, 2005 3,975,809 (1,570,000)

b) The net deferred tax asset as at March 31, 2005 com-
prises the tax impact arising from the timing differences on
account of: Amount in Rs.

As at As at
March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Depreciation 11,789,537 (4,373,610)

Net deferred asset/(liability)
relating to above 3,975,809 (1,570,000)

II.2. Contingent liabilities

Debts factored – Rs. 218,862,500 (Previous year, Rs. Nil)

Guarantees issued to banks – Rs. 5,167,943 (Previous year, Rs. Nil)

Letter of credit issued by banks – Rs. 5,244,908 (Previous year, Rs. Nil)

II.3. Acquisition of wholly-owned subsidiary - IVth Generation, Inc.

During 1999-2000, the company acquired the whole of the
outstanding shares of the IVth Generation, Inc. New Jersey, USA,
from its three owners. To reflect the true and correct state of affairs,
the acquisition was accounted at the full value of
Rs. 335,795,161 including advisory, syndication fees and other costs
although a part of the amount payable is contingent upon the
future performance of the acquiree company.  During 2000-2001,
the cost of acquisition was reduced in accordance with the final
purchase consideration as per the Definitive Purchase Agreement
and accordingly the cost was stated at Rs. 326,217,997. The amount
of investment at March 31, 2005 stands at Rs. 308,018,007 after
adjusting for the exchange fluctuation on the deferred
consideration as at the year end.

The management has received an independent valuation of the
subsidiary, which indicates that there is no impairment on the
value of the investment.

During the year, the value of certain receivables taken over which
have not been realized have, in terms of the Definitive Purchase
Agreement, been set off against the carrying value of the
investment. The company has received the approval of the Reserve
Bank of India for this adjustment.

II.4. Acquisition of tangible and intangible assets – Alcatel, UK
and Lightbridge, USA

During the year, the company acquired intellectual property rights
comprising technology, know how, source code and software
connected with the fraud management software businesses from
Alcatel, UK and Lightbridge, USA for an amount of Rs. 172,812,313
and Rs. 141,685,665 respectively, including expenses incurred in
connection with the said acquisitions.

The value of intangible assets i.e., IPRs and goodwill acquired
are based on the valuation report by independent valuers. The
tangible assets are being depreciated as per the company’s
accounting policy. The intangible assets i.e., IPRs and goodwill
are being depreciated over 5 years in accordance with the
company’s assessment of useful life thereof. Accordingly, an
amount of Rs. 30,831,458 has been charged under depreciation
in the financial year under review.

Out of the amount of Rs. 172,812,313 accounted for the Alcatel
acquisition, a portion of the consideration amounting to
Rs. 22,754,000 (Euros 400,000) is to be discharged by way of
discounts allowable to Alcatel on sale of software licenses prospected
by them  over a period of 18 months commencing from October 01,
2004, as a part of their obligations under the reseller agreement
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entered into with the company. This liability has been reflected as
deferred payment liability in the balance sheet.

II.5 Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB)

During the year, the company issued Foreign Currency Convertible
Bonds (FCCBs) aggregating to US$ 10 million to institutional
investors, to finance the above acquisitions.

The bonds carry interest of 200 basis points above 6-month LIBOR
and are redeemable by December 2009, if not converted into equity.
They are convertible at any time before maturity within a price
band of Rs. 270 to Rs. 300 per equity share, depending on the
then prevailing market price, subject to other terms.

FCCBs amounting to US$ 5,150,000 have been converted into
792,306 equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a conversion price of
Rs. 300 per share . FCCBs outstanding as at year end amounts to
Rs. 212,987,750 (US$ 4,850,000).

Further, an amount of US$ 537,412 remains unutilized, in a money
market account in First Union Bank, New Jersey, USA, out of the
proceeds of the issue as on March 31, 2005.

Expenses connected with the issue of FCCBs amounting to
Rs. 20,216,653, has been charged to the securities premium account
during the year as per the company’s accounting policy.

II.6 Subex Technologies Ltd

Subex Technologies Ltd (STL) was incorporated on March 28, 2005
as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Subex Systems Limited, with a
subscribed share capital amounting to Rs. 500,000 and as on the
date of this balance sheet, is yet to receive the Certificate of
Commencement of Business from the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka.

II.7. Operating leases

The company has various operating leases for office facilities
and residential premises for employees which include leases that
are renewable on a yearly basis, cancelable at its option and
other long term leases. Rental expenses for operating leases
included in the income statement for the year is Rs. 11,882,243.

As of March 31, 2005 future minimum lease payments for non-
cancellable operating leases for the next five fiscal years are:

Amount in Rs.

For the year ending March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Within one year from the
date of the balance sheet 8,107,127 2,491,449

Due in a period between
one year and five years 15,980,935 503,513

Due after five years —             —

For the year ending Minimum lease payments Interest Present value

2004-05 2003-04 2004-05 2003-04 2004-05 2003-04

Within one year from the
date of the balance sheet 4,568,531 4,676,248 884,085 807,717 3,684,446 3,868,531

Due in a period between
one year and five years 11,299,224 9,118,358 1,088,474 994,349 10,210,750 8,124,009

Due after five years Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Amount in Rs.

II.8. Finance leases

The company has entered into various hire purchase transactions for the acquisition of vehicles and computer systems. As of March 31, 2005,
future minimum lease payments on these transactions are:

II.9. Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOP)

ESOP – I

The company had issued 120,000 equity shares at Rs. 10 each to
Subex Foundation, an employee welfare trust, constituted to
operate an employees stock option plan.  Consequent to the issue
of bonus shares, the total shares available with the trust had
increased to 240,000. As per the scheme in force, the trust allocates
shares to those employees deemed eligible by the advisory board
constituted for the purpose. The shares are allocated at a price,
which is not less than 50% of the fair market price. The original
shares granted are subject to a minimum lock-in period of three
years and the bonus shares are subject to a minimum lock-in of 1
year, where after the shares granted can be sold/ en-cashed. As
at March 31, 2005, 152,780 shares have been granted under the
scheme to 30 employees. The balance of 87,220 shares, are
available with the trust for future grants. Since the scheme was
formulated prior to the promulgation of SEBI guidelines on ESOP
dated June 19, 1999, the company has been advised that the said
guidelines are not applicable to this scheme.

ESOP – II

During 1999-2000, the company established a new stock option
scheme under which 500,000 options have been allocated for
grant to the employees.  Each option comprises of one underlying
equity share of Rs. 10 each. This scheme has been formulated in
accordance with the SEBI guidelines on ESOP & ESPS dated June
19, 1999. As per the scheme, the compensatory committee grants
the options to the employees deemed eligible by the advisory
board constituted for the purpose. The options are granted at a
price, which is not less than 85% of the average market price of
the underlying shares based on the quotation on the Bombay
Stock Exchange for 15 days prior to the date of grant. The shares
granted vest over a period of 1 to 4 years, and can be exercised
over a maximum period of 3 years from the date of vesting.

Under this scheme 336,385 options have been granted to 258
employees as at March 31, 2005. Out of the above option 52,096
options have been vested. The difference between the market
price of the share underlying the options granted on the date of
grant of option and the exercise price of the option are expensed
over the vesting period as per the SEBI guidelines. The net impact
of the movement in option grants during the period ended
resulted in a debit of Rs. 1,744,455 (previous year, debit of
Rs. 1,580,438) to the profit & loss account for the year.
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II.11. Earnings per share
Amount in Rs.

a) Basic: 2004-05 2003-04

Profits after tax A 253,028,418 177,501,022

Less: Dividend on preference shares & distribution tax (5,288,001) (25,555,404)

Net profit available to equity shareholders - basic B 247,740,417 149,955,617

b) Diluted:

Profits after tax A 253,028,418 177,501,022

Add: Interest on FCCB 5,380,279 -

Net profit available to equity shareholders – diluted B 258,408,697 177,501,022

Weighted average number of shares - basic C 8,916,737 7,346,581
Weighted average number of shares – diluted D 9,741,695          9,529,828
Earnings per share – basic B / C 27.78 20.68
Earnings per share - diluted A / D 26.53 18.63

Amount in Rs.

Nature of transaction Subsidiary Companies under Key management Total
same management personnel

2004-05 2003-04 2004-05 2003-04 2004-05 2003-04 2004-05 2003-04

a) Purchase of services 487,854,199 426,050,102 - - 487,854,199 426,050,102
b) Inter corporate

deposits received - - 325,000 21,300,000 - 325,000 21,300,000
c) Interest paid on

inter corporate deposit - - 187,702 531,106 -     187,702 531,106
d) Repayment of inter

corporate deposit/ loan - -     2,073,508 57,675,000 -    2,073,508 57,675,000
e) Salary & perquisites - - - - 15,670,746 10,179,435 15,670,746 10,179,435
f) Amount due from

as at March 31, 2005 85,017,124 71,071,709 - - - 85,017,124 71,071,709
g) Amount due to

as at March 31, 2005 121,703,879 112,363,949 - 1,748,508 4,975,500 1,806,869 126,679,379 115,919,326

B. Details of the transactions with the related parties other than employees who are related to the Directors of the company is as under:

Employee stock options details as on the balance sheet date are ;

ESOP – I

As at As at
March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Options outstanding at
the beginning of the year 26,602 51,397

Granted - -

Forfeited/ cancelled                       - 1,965

Exercised - 22,830

Balance at end of the year 26,602 26,602

II.10. Related party information

A. Related parties

Wholly-owned subsidiaries controlled by the company

Subex Technologies, Inc., USA
Subex Technologies Limited, India

ESOP – II

As at As at
March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Options outstanding at
the beginning of the year 301,440 196,375

Granted 101,800 130,650

Forfeited/ cancelled 32,749 15,599

Exercised 34,106 9,986

Balance at end of the year 336,385 301,440

Companies under same management

Cellcomm Solutions Limited
Subex Holdings Private Limited

Key management personnel

Subash Menon, Chairman & Managing Director
Sudeesh Yezhuvath, Wholetime Director
Alex P. J, Executive Director
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II.12. a. Managerial remuneration to Managing Director and Wholetime Directors Amount in Rs.

Year ended March 31, 2005 Year ended March 31, 2004

Salary 7,035,509 7,462,324
Perquisites 1,135,237 1,217,111
Commission (as computed in the following table) 7,500,000 1,500,000

Total 15,670,746 10,179,435

b. Directors’ remuneration

Computation of net profit in accordance with Section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 Amount in Rs.

2004-05 2003-04

Profit as per the profit & Loss Account 261,097,437 189,045,165

Add: Directors’ fees, 32,500 30,500
remuneration to Directors (including commission) 16,470,746 16,503,246 10,579,435 10,609,935

Less: Surplus on sale of fixed assets (114,895) (204,833)

Profits for computation of Directors’ commission 277,485,788 199,450,26

Maximum remuneration of Wholetime Directors under 27,748,579 19,945,027
provision of the Companies Act, 1956 @ 10%

Remuneration including commission, restricted to 15,670,746 10,179,435

Maximum commission to Non-Wholetime Directors
under provision of the Companies Act, 1956 @ 1% 2,774,858 1,994,503

Commission restricted to 800,000 400,000

II.13. Auditors’ remuneration

Miscellaneous expenditure includes remuneration to auditors Amount in Rs.

Year ended March 31, 2005 Year ended March 31, 2004

Audit fees (inclusive of service tax) 994,400 756,000

For tax matters 55,100 54,000

Other consultancy 800,000 -

Reimbursement of expenses 10,929 14,451

Total 1,860,429 824,451

The disclosure required by the Accounting Standard 24
“Discontinuing Operations”, in respect of initial disclosure event
is given below:

Amount in Rs.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Revenue from discontinuing operations 537,533,104 482,497,450

Expenses from discontinuing operations 516,358,923 458,805,915

Pre-tax profit/ (loss) from ordinary activities attributable to
discontinuing operations 21,174,181 23,691,535

Carrying amounts as at balance sheet of total assets 256,615,310   175,186,913

Carrying amounts as at balance sheet of total liabilities 36,686,755 41,292,240

Net cash flows attributable to discontinuing operations (43,194,387) 21,871,527

II. 15 Details of provisions made & utilised Amount in Rs.

Details of Balance as on Additions during  Utilisation during Balance as on
provision April 01, 2004 the period the period March 31, 2005

Warranty 2,212,498 1,035,796 2,774,344 473,950

Probable period of outflow in case of warranty 6-12 months.

II.14 Discontinued operations

Pursuant to resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of
Directors of the company, held on January 27, 2005, the company
has decided to transfer services business to its Wholly-owned
subsidiary, Subex Technologies Ltd.
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they become due for payment requiring a transfer to the ‘Investor
Education and Protection Fund’.

4. Personnel cost for the year include expenditure on
research and development of Rs. 6,000,318 (Previous year
Rs. 5,328,021)

5. The Shareholders of the company had approved, in the
Extraordinary General Meeting in March, 2003, the allotment
1,887,000, 12.25% Redeemable Optionally Convertible Cumulative
Preference Shares (ROCCPS) at a face value of Rs. 98 per share and
tenor of 36 months.  Out of this, 1,570,245 ROCCPS were allotted
to Intel Capital and UTI Veture Funds on March 31, 2003 and the
balance 316,755 ROCCPS were allotted to Toronto Dominion Bank
on April 07, 2003 after receipt of subscription amount from them.

As per terms of issue, each ROCCPS is convertible at the option
of the shareholder into an equity share at a premium of Rs. 88
each. Such option is to be exercised before expiry of 18 months
from the date of allotment. During the year under review,
1,887,000 ROCCPS have been converted into equal number of
equity shares at a premium of Rs. 88 per share, pursuant to  the
option exercised by Intel Capital (958,000 equity shares) and
UTI Venture Funds (612,245 equity shares) and Toronto Dominion
Bank (316,755 shares).

6. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped to conform
to the classifications for the year.

Signature to the Schedules  A – R
Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath
Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director

Bangalore V. Balaji Bhat Rajkumar C
April 28, 2005 Director Company Secretary & Legal Counsel

II.16. Quantitative details

None of the traded items are in excess of 10% of revenues and it
is not practical to give quantitative information in the absence
of common expressible units.

II.17. Others

1. During the year the company has switched all its working
capital facilities from State Bank of India to UTI Bank Ltd, but
for an FCNR(B) loan amounting to US$ 1,300,000, which is
repayable on  May 11, 2005. However, there are no loans
outstanding with UTI Bank Ltd as on March 31, 2005.

Fund and Non-fund based credit facilities availed from State Bank
of India are secured by the first charge on all the fixed and current
assets of the company. These loans are also secured by equitable
mortgage of land belonging to the company. The loans are further
secured by the personal guarantee of Promoter Directors of the
company and property belonging to Subex Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
Facilities with UTI Bank Ltd are secured by hypothecation of
receivables and charge on the company’s fixed assets.

2. Estimated amount of contracts, remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for (net  of advances paid)
Rs. Nil  (Previous year, Rs. Nil).

3. Amount of Rs. 301,227 represents the unclaimed dividend
for the period from 1999-2004. No part thereof has remained
unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date

II.18 Other information pursuant to Schedule 6 of Companies Act, 1956 Amount in Rs.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

CIF value of imports 17,725,672 7,684,173

Expenditure in foreign currency

Travelling expenses 8,508,837 4,903,951

Import of goods 800,616 3,605,804

Interest expense 5,331,718 536,586

Capital expenditure 13,000,271 42,672,965

Acquisition 1,101,006 -

Payment to Magardi, Inc., (towards part payment of Intellectual
Property Rights (IPR)). - 28,406,098

Investment in subsidiary on payment basis 34,160,045

Product marketing expense and other expenditure incurred overseas for
software development 604,766,727 522,881,078

Earnings in foreign exchange

Income from software development services and
products on receipt basis 1,042,081,071 640,473,883

Remittance in foreign currency on account of dividend

Amount remitted during the year in foreign currency on account of
dividends for the year ended March 31, 2005 13,214,345 7,641,681

No. of non-resident shareholders to whom remittance was made
for the year ended March 31, 2005 51 2

No. of shares held by non-resident shareholders on which dividend was due
for the year ended March 31, 2005 58,932 1,274,755
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BALANCE SHEET  ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

COMPANY: SUBEX SYSTEMS LIMITED YEAR : 2004-2005

I. Registration details
Registration No. 1 6 6 6 3 State code 0 8

Balance sheet date 3 1 - 0 3 - 2 0 0 5

II. Capital raised during the year (Rupees in thousands)
Public issue Rights issues -

Bonus issue - Private placements - Equity
                      - Preference

Preferential offer of shares under Employee Stock Option Plan* - Equity 3 4 1

III. Position of the mobilisation and development of funds (Rupees in thousands)
Total liabilities 1 5 4 2 0 6 9 Total assets 1 5 4 2 0 6 9

Source of funds
Paid up capital 1 0 0 6 7 2 Share application money 3 1 9

Secured loans 7 3 2 8 2 Reserves & surplus 1 1 3 2 0 5 4

Unsecured loans 2 3 5 7 4 2

Deferred tax liability -

Application of funds
Net fixed assets 3 6 7 8 2 8 Investments 3 0 8 5 1 9

Net current assets 8 6 1 7 4 6 Deferred tax assets 3 9 7 6

Miscellaneous expenditure - Accumulated lossess -

IV. Performance of company (Rupees in thousands)
Turnover 1 1 7 2 4 6 4 Total expenditure 9 1 1 3 6 7

Profit before tax 2 6 1 0 9 7 Profit after tax 2 5 3 0 2 8

Earnings per share from  27.78 Earnings per share from  26.53

ordinary activities (basic) (Rs.) ordinary activities (diluted) (Rs.)

Interim dividend rate % 1 0
Final dividend rate % 2 0

V. Generic name of three principal products/ services of the company (As per monetary terms)

Item code no. 8 5 / 2 4 Product C O M P U T E R S O F T W A R E

(ITC code no.) Description

*Issue of shares arising of the exercise of option granted to employees under the company’s ESOP II (2000)

Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath
Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director

V. Balaji Bhat
Director

Bangalore Rajkumar C
April 28, 2005 Company Secretary & Legal Counsel
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956, RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

1. Name of the subsidiary : Subex Technologies, Inc.

2. Financial year ended : March 31, 2005

3. Holding company’s interest : 100% in common stock

4. Shares held by the holding company in the subsidiary : 3,000 numbers of common stock fully paid, no
par value

5. The net aggregate of profits or losses for the current
financial year of the subsidiary so far as it concerns the
members of the holding company dealt with or provided
for in the acounts of the holding company

a. Dealt with or provided for in the accounts of the holding company : Nil

b Not dealt with or provided for in the accounts of the holding company : US$ 80,870

6. The net aggregate of profits or losses for previous financial years of the
subsidiary so far as it concerns the members of the holding company

a. Dealt with or provided for in the accounts of the holding company : Nil

b. Not dealt with or provided for in the accounts of the holding company : Profit US$ 80,870

Bangalore Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath
April 28, 2005 Director Director

REPORT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Subex
Technologies, Inc. as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related
statements of income, retained earnings (accumulated deficit),
and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Subex
Technologies, Inc. as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended are
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Ridgewood, New Jersey Flackman, Goodman & Potter, P.A.
April 26, 2005 Certified Public Accountants

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

For the year ended March 31, 2005

The Directors of Subex Tecnologies, Inc., present the results of
operations for the financial year 2005

Financial Results:

2005 2004
(in US$) (in US$)

Total revenue 10,842,595 9,348,668

Gross margin 550,217 497,461

Income before taxes 103,609 92,926

Net income 80,870 93,186

During the financial year 2004-05 your company’s revenue has
gone up from US$ 9,348,677 to US$ 10,842,595, a growth of
15.98%

Your Directors are confident of maintaining the growth level in
the coming years

for Subex Technologies, Inc.,

Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath
Director Director

April 26, 2005
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT

Amount in US$

Mar 31, 2005 Mar 31, 2004

Assets

Current assets US$ US$

Accounts receivable 2,804,701 2,976,545

Employee advances 17,195 8,400

Other current assets 16,882 80,625

Total current assets 2,838,778 3,065,570

Equipment

Equipment 138,483 128,020

Furniture and fixtures 2,554 2,554

Accumulated depreciation (113,063) (101,878)

Total equipment 27,974 28,696

Other assets

Goodwill 5,129,176 5,129,176

Security deposit 3,038 3,038

Total other assets 5,132,214 5,132,214

Total assets 7,998,966 8,226,480

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 315,107 603,008

Accrued expenses and payroll 459,978 413,270

Corporate income tax payable 6,800 2,000

Due to related entity 1,950,606 1,620,422

Total current liabilities 2,732,491 2,638,700

Shareholders’ equity

Capital stock, no par value, 10,000 shares
authorized, 3,000 shares issued and outstanding 2,000 2,000

Additional paid in capital 5,211,829 5,614,004

Accumulated deficit 52,646 (28,224)

Total shareholder’s equity 5,266,475 5,587,780

Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity 7,998,966 8,226,480

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS (ACCUMULATED
DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Mar 31, 2005 Mar 31, 2004

Revenues

Consulting fees 10,842,595 9,348,668

Interest income - 9

Total revenues 10,842,595 9,348,677

Expenses

Subcontracting expense 1,399,287 2,409,951

Payroll expense 7,887,325 5,657,095

Payroll tax expense 673,636 486,483

Insurance expense 274,908 220,771

Professional fees 135,111 116,048

Employee reimbursement expense 15,226 8,223

Retirement plan contributions 33,616  32,184

2005 2004

Rent  45,367 47,684

Office expense 27,697 18,653

Telephone 14,720 12,875

Postage and delivery 6,861 4,435

Travel and entertainment  166,499 158,451

Depreciation 11,185 13,075

Recruiting expenses 3,455 790

Bank and license fees 3,525 2,467

Relocation expense and joining bonus 7,880 1,500

Repairs  - 22,000

Training 500 35,000

Miscellaneous 32,188  8,066

Total expenses 10,738,986 9,255,751

Income before income taxes 103,609 92,926

Provision (benefit) for income taxes 22,739 (260)

Net income 80,870 93,186

Accumulated deficit – beginning (28,224) (121,410)

Retained earnings (accumulated
deficit) – ending 52,646 (28,224)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Mar 31, 2005 Mar 31, 2004

Cash flow from operating activities

Net income 80,870 93,186

Non cash expenses included in net income:

Depreciation 11,185 13,075

Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 171,844 93,575

Other assets 63,455 (2,689)

Accounts payable (287,901) 268,507

Accrued expenses 46,708 86,256

Other current liabilities 4,800 (14,491)

Net cash provided by operating
activities 90,961 537,419

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets (10,463) (28,807)

Net cash used by investing activities (10,463) (28,807)

Cash flow from financing activities

Paid in capital (402,175) -

Repayment to (advances from) related entity 321,677 (508,612)

Net cash used by financing activities (80,498) (508,612)

Net decrease in cash - -

Cash – beginning of year - -

Cash – end of year  - -

Supplemental disclosures

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest  -  -

Income taxes  17,204 11,510

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to financial statements
March 31, 2005 and 2004

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

Nature of operations

Subex Technologies, Inc. “the company” is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Subex Systems Limited - India “the parent”. The company
is a placement company for computer personnel and maintenance.
Customers are located throughout the United States. Credit is granted
substantially to all customers.

Cash equivalents

The company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with
a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable - Recognition of bad debts

The company considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible;
accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts is provided.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Method Estimated useful life

Equipment Declining balance 5 years

Furniture and equipment Declining balance 5-7 years

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for the
years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 was US$ 0 and US$ 0, respectively.

Income taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized for differences between the basis
of assets and liabilities for financial statement and income tax purposes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities represent future tax consequences of
those differences that will either be taxable or deductible when the
related assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. At March 31, 2005
and 2004 there were no material temporary differences giving rise to
deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the purchase price and transaction costs associated
with business acquisitions in excess of estimated fair value of the net
assets of the business.

The FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Intangible Assets”. SFAS
No. 142 eliminates the amortization of goodwill, requires annual
impairment testing of goodwill and introduces the concept of indefinite
life intangible assets.

Management annually reviews the carrying value of goodwill to determine
whether an impairment may exist. The company considers relevant cash
flow and profitability information, including estimated future operating
results, trends, and other available information, in assessing whether
the carrying value of intangible assets can be recovered. If it is determined
that the carrying value of goodwill will not be recovered from the
undiscounted future cash flows of the acquired business, the carrying
value of such intangible assets would be considered impaired and reduced
by a charge to operations to the extent of the amount of the impairment.
An impairment charge is measured if any deficiency in the amount of
estimated undiscounted future cash flows of the acquired business
available to recover the carrying value related to the intangible assets.
Based on this assessment there was no impairment to goodwill.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made for the prior years’ financial
statements to conform to the current year presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on previously reported results of operations
or retained earnings.

2. Income taxes

The (benefit) provision for income taxes for the years ended March 31,
2005 and 2004 consists of current tax expense.

2005 2004
US$ US$

Federal 9,778 (6,548)

State 12,961  6,288

22,739 (260)

3. Employee benefit plan

The company maintains a 401(k) Savings Plan for qualified employees.
The terms of the plan define qualified employees as those over 21 years
of age, with at least six months of service with the company. Employee
contributions are discretionary to a maximum of 15% of compensation.
The company matches 50% of the employees’ contributions up to 6% of
compensation. 401(k) expenses for the years ended March 31, 2005 and
2004 were US$ 33,616 and US$ 32,184, respectively.

4. Debt

The company has available a revolving line of credit with a bank.
Borrowings under this line of credit bear interest at the bank’s prime
rate plus 1.0%. The outstanding balances at March 31, 2005 and 2004
was US$ 0 and US$ 0, respectively.

5. Related party

The company bills the parent company on a cost plus basis for manpower
requirements. Revenue from parent company for the years ended March
31, 2005 and 2004 was $10,842,595 and $9,345,874, respectively.

The company has advanced and received funds from SSL for working
capital purposes. At March 31, 2005 and 2004 the company owed SSL
$1,950,606 and $1,620,422, respectively.

Accounts receivable at March 31, 2005 and 2004 include US$ 2,771,351
and US$ 2,541,021 respectively due from the parent company.

6. Concentration of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the company to
concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and accounts
receivable. The company controls credit risk through credit approvals,
credit limits, and monitoring procedures. The company generally does
not require collateral to support accounts receivable.

The company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times,
may exceed federally insured limits. Accounts are guaranteed by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to US$ 100,000. The company
has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

7. Commitments

The company leases office space under a four year lease expiring December
31, 2006. Rent expense for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004
was US$ 45,367 and US$ 47,684, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows for the years ended
March 31:

2006 US$ 42,516

2007 US$ 31,887

US$ 74,403
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956, RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

1 Name of the subsidiary : Subex Technologies Limited

2 Financial year ended : March 31, 2005

3 Holding company’s interest : 100% in common stock

4 Shares held by the holding company in the subsidiary : 50,000 of common stock fully paid

5 The net aggregate of profits or losses for the current
financial year of the subsidiary so far as it concerns the
members of the holding company dealt with or provided
for in the acounts of the holding company

a. Dealt with or provided for in the accounts of the holding company : Nil

b Not dealt with or provided for in the accounts of the holding company : Activities not yet started

6 The net aggregate of profits or losses for previous financial years of the
subsidiary so far as it concerns the members of the holding company

a. Dealt with or provided for in the accounts of the holding company : Nil

b. Not dealt with or provided for in the accounts of the holding company : NA

Bangalore Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath
April 28, 2005 Director Director
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SUBEX TECHNOLOGIES
LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting this first annual report
together with the audited accounts for the year ended March 31,
2005. Subex Technologies Limited is incorporated as a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Subex Technologies Limited on March 28,
2005. The company’s business operations are yet to commence.

Directors

Mr. Subash Menon, Mr. Sudeesh Yezhuvath and Mr. Balaji Bhat
are the first Directors of the company.

Fixed deposits

Your company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the
public.

Mandatory disclosure requirements under Section 217 of the
Companies Act, 1956

As the company is yet to commence commercial operations,
mandatory disclosure requirements pursuant to Section 217 of
the Companies Act, 1956 read with relevant rules framed
thereunder are not applicable to the company.

Auditors

M/s. P. Chandrasekhar & Co. have been appointed as the first
auditors of the company, whose reappointment is subject to
approval of shareholders at the first annual general meeting.

Directors’ responsibility statement

In accordance with the provision of Section 217(2AA) of the
Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors affirm;

a) That in the preparation of the accounts for the period ending
March 31, 2005, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed and there are no material departures there from.

b) That the accounting policies have been selected and applied
consistently (except with respect to change in provision for
depreciation) and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2005 and
of the profit of the company for the year ended on that date.

c) That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities.

d) That the accounts for the period ended March 31, 2005 has
been prepared on a going concern basis.

Acknowledgement

Your Directors wish to express their gratitude and thanks to the
Registrar of Companies, Karnataka, Government of India,
Department of Telecom, Central Excise and Customs Department,
Software Technology Parks of India, Bangalore, State Government
and other Governmental Agencies for their support in setting up
the company and look forward for their continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board

Bangalore Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath
April 28, 2005 Director Director

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBEX
TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Subex Technologies
Limited as at March 31, 2005, the Statement of Preliminary and
Preoperative Expenses for the period ended on that date annexed
thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in India. These Standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2003
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section
(4A) of Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, the Annexure
to Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of
the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

4. Further to our comments, we report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the company so far as appears from our
examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Preliminary and Preoperative
Expenses dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of accounts.

d. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, statement of Preliminary
and Preoperative Expenses dealt with by this report comply with
the accounting standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of
Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

e. On the basis of written representations received from the
Directors, as on March 31, 2005, and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, we report that none of the Directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2005 from being appointed as a
Director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of Section 274
of the Companies Act, 1956;

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the said accounts give the
information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, in the case of
the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2005.

Bangalore for M/s P. Chandrasekar & Co.
April 28, 2005 Chartered Accountants

Lakshmy Chandrasekaran
Partner

Membership No. 28508



74 Annual Report 2004-05

BALANCE SHEET AS AT

Schedule March 31, 2005

Sources of funds

1. Shareholders’ funds

a) Share capital A 500,000
b) Reserves & surplus

500,000

2. Loan funds

a) Secured loans
b) Unsecured loans B 283,079

283,079

3. Deferred tax liability

Total liabilities 783,079

Application of funds
1. Fixed assets

a) Gross block
Less: Depreciation
Net block
b) Capital work in progress

2. Current assets, loans and advances C

a) Inventories -
b) Sundry debtors
c) Cash & bank balances 500,000
d) Loans and advances -

500,000

Less: Current liabilities & provisions

a) Current liabilities -
b) Provisions -

-

Net current assets 500,000

Miscellaneous expenditure D
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

Preliminary expenses 283,079

Total assets 783,079

Accounting policies and notes to accounts E

The above schedules form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

for M/S. P. Chandrasekar & Co. for Subex Technologies Limited
Chartered Accountants

Lakshmy Chandrasekaran Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 28508

Bangalore
April 28, 2005

Amount in Rs.
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SCHEDULES A TO E ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT

March 31, 2005

Schedule - A

Share capital

1. Authorised
a) Equity

3,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 30,000,000
2. Issued, subscribed and Paid up:

50,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each               500,000

Total 500,000

Schedule - B

Unsecured loans from Subex Systems Limited 283,079

-

Total 283,079

Schedule - C

Current assets, loans & advances

1. Cash and bank balances
a) Cash in hand
b) Balance with scheduled banks

i) In current account               500,000

500,000

Schedule - D

Preliminary and preoperative expenses

Registration expenses 276,479

Printing and stationery 1,500

Domain name registration 5,100

Total 283,079

Amount in Rs.
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Schedule - E

Accounting policies

A. Significant accounting policies

A.1. Basis for preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention and on accrual basis, in accordance with the
applicable accounting principles in India, the mandatory
Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956.

A.2.  Expenditure

Expenses are accounted on accrual basis and provision is made
for all known losses and liabilities.

B. Notes on accounts

B.1 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for Rs. nil

2004 - 2005

B.2. Foreign currency expenditure nil

B.3. Earnings in foreign currency nil

B.4. Deferred taxation

In view of the operations of the company not having commenced,
the liability towards deferred tax does not arise at this stage.

B.5. Previous year’s figures

The accounts of the company has been prepared for the period
from March 28, 2005 to March 31, 2005 and hence previous
years figures have not been given. Further, the company has not
commenced operations.

B.6. Dues to Small Scale Industrial undertakings outstanding
for more than 30 days

Sl. no. Name of the Party
1 Nil

B.7 No profit and loss account has been prepared for the period
ended March 31, 2005 since operations have not
commenced.

Signatures to Schedules A to E

for  Subex Technologies Limited

Bangalore Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath
April 28, 2005 Director Director
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUBEX SYSTEMS LIMITED

1. We have examined the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of Subex Systems Limited and it’s subsidiaries as at March 31, 2005,
the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in India. These standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements.  An
audit includes, examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the
overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiaries, Subex Technologies, Inc. and Subex Technologies Limited, whose
audited financial statements reflect gross total assets of Rs. 41,834,828 as at March 31, 2005 and total turnover of Rs. 487,854,199
for the year then ended and the financial statements of the Company’s branch, in the United States of America (US Branch). These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors, whose report/returns have been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these subsidiaries, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

4. We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Standard (AS) 21, Consolidated Financial Statements, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and on
the basis of the separate audited financial statements of Subex Systems Limited and its subsidiaries included in the consolidated
financial statements.

5. On the basis of the information and explanation given to us and on the consideration of the separate audit reports on individual
financial statements of Subex Systems Limited and its aforesaid subsidiaries, we are of the opinion that the attached Consolidated
Financial Statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

a) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the consolidated state of affairs of Subex Systems Limited and its subsidiaries as
at March 31, 2005; and

b) in the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the consolidated results of operations of Subex Systems Limited and its
subsidiaries for the year then ended.

c) in the case of the consolidated Cash Flow Statement of the consolidated cash flows of Subex Systems Limited and its subsidiaries
for the year then ended.

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

V. Srikumar
Bangalore Partner
April 28, 2005 Membership No. 84494
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT

Schedules March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Sources of funds
Shareholders’ funds

Share capital A 100,672,230 258,464,110

Share application money 318,640 243,535

Reserve and surplus B 1,139,997,336 1,240,988,206 544,134,826 802,842,471

Loan funds

Secured loans C 73,282,446 147,203,061

Unsecured loans D 212,987,750 1,748,508

Deferred payment consideration towards acquisition

- IVth Generation, Inc., USA - 18,883,619

- Alcatel, FMS division 22,754,000 309,024,196 - 167,835,188

Deferred tax liability (net) - 1,570,000

Total 1,550,012,402 972,247,659
Application of funds
Fixed assets  E
Gross block 561,999,271 215,272,583

Less:  Depreciation 193,342,709 124,715,710

Net block 368,656,562 90,556,873

Capital work in progress 465,431 437,108

369,121,993 90,993,981

Goodwill 308,987,980 308,987,980
Investments F 1,000 1,000

Deferred tax asset (net) 3,975,809 -
Current assets, loans & advances

Inventories G 62,589 138,025

Sundry debtors  H 732,404,000 615,168,612

Cash & bank balances I 278,411,743 33,607,318

Loans & advances J 57,205,909 43,168,846

1,068,084,241 692,082,801

Less: Current liabilities & provisions K 200,441,700 120,075,045

Net current assets 867,642,541 572,007,756

Miscellaneous expenditure
(To the extent not written off or adjusted) L 283,079 256,942

Total 1,550,012,402 972,247,659
Notes on accounts  R

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the balance sheet

In terms of our report of even date

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath V. Balaji Bhat
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director Director

V. Srikumar Rajkumar C
Partner Company Secretary & Legal Counsel
Membership No. 84494

Bangalore
April 28, 2005

Amount in Rs.
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Schedules March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Income
Sales & services 1,165,502,087 879,250,709

Other income M 6,962,229 12,685,900

Total 1,172,464,316 891,936,609
Expenditure
Materials consumed N 31,827,135 15,637,526

Personnel costs O 636,513,625 499,303,206

Other operating, selling and
administrative expenses P 141,507,667 130,120,789

Financial costs Q 24,374,699 14,415,306

Miscellaneous expenses amortized 256,942 1,474,724

Depreciation E 71,685,019 41,813,946

Total 906,165,087 702,765,497
Profit before taxation 266,299,229 189,171,112
Provision for taxation

- Current 14,636,780 7,912,175

- Deferred (5,545,809) 9,090,971 3,620,000 11,532,175

Profit after taxation 257,208,258 177,638,937

Add: Balance brought forward from previous year 253,215,412 131,223,916

Profit available for appropriation 510,423,670 308,862,853
Appropriation
Transfer to general reserve 25,500,000 13,500,000

Dividend

- Equity shares - Interim dividend 9,274,917 -

- Equity shares - Proposed final dividend 20,134,446 14,707,622

Dividend on preference shares 4,651,061 34,060,424 22,652,990 37,360,612

Tax on distributed profits 4,518,432 4,786,829

Surplus carried to the balance sheet 446,344,814 253.215,412

510,423,670 308,862,853

Earnings per share - basic 28.25 20.70

Earnings per share - diluted 26.96 18.65

Notes on accounts  R

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the profit & loss account

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Amount in Rs.

In terms of our report of even date

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath V. Balaji Bhat
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director Director

V. Srikumar Rajkumar C
Partner Company Secretary & Legal Counsel
Membership No. 84494

Bangalore
April 28, 2005

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Amount in Rs.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax and before extraordinary items 266,299,229  189,171,112
Adjustments for
a) Depreciation and amortization 71,941,961 43,288,670
b) Interest/ dividend Income (1,681,501) (1,676,428)
c) Interest on borrowings 24,374,699 14,415,306
d) Assets written off/ loss on sale 829,470 1,273,594
e) Profit on sale of assets (114,895) (204,833)
f) Employee compensation expenses 1,008,361 1,580,438
g) Provision for doubtful debts 4,295,276 -
h) Direct taxes paid (8,279,599) (12,795,609)
Operating profit before working capital changes 358,673,001 235,052,250
Adjustments for
a) Trade and other receivables (121,530,664) (186,921,596)
b) Loans and advances (14,885,633) (7,908,268)
c) Inventories 75,436 59,998
d) Trade and other payables 74,979,824 (1,020,811)
Cash generated from operations A 297,311,964 39,261,574
Cash flow from investing activities
a) Purchase of fixed assets (351,296,337) (56,719,212)
b) Preliminary expences (283,079) -
c) Sale/ disposal of fixed assets 768,732 1,289,189
d) Sale/ purchase of investments - 1,000
e) Deferred payment consideration towards acquisition 3,870,381 (65,337,336)
Net cash from investing activities B (346,940,303) (120,766,359)
Cash flow from financing activities
a) Proceeds from issue of share capital 217,939,080 32,135,049
b) Proceeds/ repayments from borrowings (net) (75,669,123) (50,147,439)
c) FCCB (to the extent not converted) 212,987,750
d) Dividends paid (43,304,005) (21,054,836)
e) Interest paid on borrowings (19,771,331) (14,415,306)
f) Interest received 1,681,501 1,676,428
Net cash from financing activities C 293,863,872 (51,806,104)
Exchange fluctuation reserve on account of consolidation 568,892 4,562,908
Net increase in cash or cash equivalents  [A + B + C] 244,235,533 (133,310,889)
Cash or cash equivalents at the start of the year 33,607,318 162,355,299
Cash or cash equivalents at the close of the year 278,411,743 33,607,318

Note : Cash & cash equivalents include balance with scheduled banks on dividend account and GIC deposit account of Rs. 895,009
(Previous year, Rs. 1,235,550) which are not available for use by the company.

In terms of our report of even date

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath V. Balaji Bhat
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director Director

V. Srikumar Rajkumar C
Partner Company Secretary & Legal Counsel
Membership No. 84494

Bangalore
April 28, 2005

Amount in Rs.
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SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT

March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Schedule - A
Share capital
Authorised
32,100,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 321,000,000 111,800,000
2,000,000 Redeemable Optionally Convertible Cumulative 196,000,000 196,000,000
Preference Shares (ROCCPS) of Rs. 98 each
Total 517,000,000 307,800,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up
A) Equity

10,067,223 (Previous year, 7,353,811)
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 100,672,230 73,538,110
Of the above
a) 115,000 shares of Rs. 10 each were allotted for

consideration other than for cash
b) 4,626,940 shares of Rs. 10  each are allotted as bonus

shares by capitalisation of general reserve
c) 12,840 shares of Rs. 10 each are allotted in part

settlement of cost of acquisition of subsidiary
B) Preference

Nil (Previous year, 1,887,000) Redeemable Optionally Convertible
Cumulative Preference Shares (ROCCPS) of Rs. 98 each - 184,926,000

Total 100,672,230 258,464,110
Schedule - B
Reserves and surplus
Capital reserve 13,006,920 13,006,920
General reserve - opening balance 98,302,608 84,802,608
Add:  Additions during the year 25,500,000 123,802,608 13,500,000 98,302,608

Securities premium account - opening balance 166,327,505 165,577,841
Add:  Net additions during the year 375,655,855 541,983,360 749,664 166,327,505

Employees stock options outstanding 10,428,860 6,936,691
Less: deferred employees compensation expenses 5,665,463 4,763,397 3,181,655 3,755,036
Exchange reserve on consolidation 10,096,237 9,527,345
Profit & loss account 446,344,814 253,215,412
Total 1,139,997,336 544,134,826
Schedule - C
Secured loans
State Bank of India - MTL - 15,725,000

(Amount repayable within one year Rs. Nil)
(Previous year, Rs. 10,020,000)

State Bank of India -  Cash credit - 51,018,213
State Bank of India - FCNR (B) loan 59,387,250 68,010,000

[Amount repayable within one year: Rs. 59,387,250)
(Previous year, Rs. 68,010,000)

(Secured by first charge on all fixed assets of the company, both
present and future, book debts, stock, personal guarantee
of two Directors and equitable mortgage of industrial land)
Hire purchase 13,895,196 12,449,848
(Secured by hypothecation of motor cars)

[Amount repayable within one year: Rs. 4,568,531)
(Previous year, Rs. 5,068,539)

Total 73,282,446 147,203,061
Schedule - D
Unsecured Loans
Inter corporate deposits - 1,748,508
Foreign currency convertible bonds (Refer Note II.5 of Schedule R) 212,987,750 -

212,987,750 1,748,508

Amount in Rs.
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SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT

March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Schedule - F
Investments
(Unquoted at cost)
Long term - non trade
In Government securities - I.V.P 1,000 1,000
Total 1,000 1,000

Schedule - G
Inventories (at cost)
Traded goods 62,589 138,025
Total 62,589 138,025

Schedule - H
Sundry debtors
(Unsecured)
Outstanding for more than six months

- Considered good 206,737,371 225,765,633
- Considered doubtful 23,938,870 22,975,896

230,676,241 248,741,529
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 23,938,870 206,737,371 22,975,896 225,765,633
Others 525,666,629 389,402,979
Total (considered good) 732,404,000 615,168,612

Schedule - I
Cash & bank balances
Cash on hand 425,892 285,624
Cheques on hand - 1,721,759
Balance with scheduled banks

- in current account in Indian Rupees 10,850,189 3,322,211
- in Deposit account in Indian Rupees 219,021,499 564,346
- in EEFC account in foreign currency 2,438,103 1,429,756

Balance with non scheduled banks
- Deposit with Royal Bank of Canada 895,009 846,602
- in current account with Royal Bank of Canada, Canada 576,781 544,038

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 2,292,382)
- in checking account with First Union Bank, New Jersey 18,108,364 23,449,091

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 443,908,601)
- in money market account with First Union Bank, New Jersey 23,423,122 -
- (Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 367,000,000)
- in Hellinic Bank - CYP account, Cyprus 1,548 145,968

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 700,636)
- in Hellinic Bank - US$ account -  Cyprus 7,593 73,173

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 1,649,221)
- in Bank of China - RMB account - China 495,853 697,413

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 1,116,187)
- in Bank of China - US$ account - China 766,318 527,337

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 902,945)
- in First National Bank of Colorado - US$ Account - CO 1,398,966 -

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 5,729,841)
- in HSBC Bank - GBP account - Slough, London 2,506 -

(Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 21,167,214)

Total 278,411,743 33,607,318

Amount in Rs.
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SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT

March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Schedule - J
Loans & advances
(Unsecured, considered good, subject to confirmation)
Loans and advances recoverable in cash
or in kind or for value to be received 26,573,953 15,688,369
Advance income tax including TDS 9,841,828 10,690,398
Other deposits 20,790,128 16,790,079

Total 57,205,909 43,168,846

Schedule - K
Current liabilities & provisions
Sundry creditors
Sundry creditors 60,616,377 65,005,449
(other than Small Scale Industrial undertaking)
Advance received from customers 68,936,388 8,848,839
Duties & taxes 29,703,755 5,819,039
Unclaimed dividends (Refer Note II.16.3 of Schedule R) 301,227 159,557,747 324,581 79,997,908

Provisions
Taxation 16,180,750 10,672,139
Dividends 22,071,631 26,065,372
Tax on proposed dividends 2,631,572 40,883,953 3,339,626 40,077,137

Total 200,441,700 120,075,045
Schedule - L
Miscellaneous Expenditure
(To the extent not written off or adjusted)
Share issue expenses - 256,942

Preliminary expenses 283,079 -

Total 283,079 256,942

Amount in Rs.
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SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Schedule - M
Other income

Interest received (Gross, TDS Rs. 51,510, Previous year, Rs. 194,853) 1,681,501 1,676,428

Other income received 3,665,399 3,723,051

Creditors no longer payable written back 128,861 3,536,021

Exchange fluctuation account 869,400 -

Rent received 617,068 3,750,400

Total 6,962,229 12,685,900

Schedule - N
Materials, finished goods consumed

Consumption of raw materials and bought out components

Purchase of systems & solutions 31,751,699 15,577,528

(Increase)/ Decrease in finished goods

Opening stock - finished goods 138,025 198,023

Closing stock - finished goods 62,589 75,436 138,025 59,998

Total 31,827,135 15,637,526

Schedule - O
Personnel costs

Salaries, wages & allowances 553,705,655 371,401,116

Contribution to provident fund and other funds 4,737,399 3,489,108

Other staff related costs 15,182,835 13,482,937

Sub contract charges 62,887,736 110,930,045

Total 636,513,625 499,303,206

Amount in Rs.
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SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Schedule - P
Other operating, selling and
Administrative expenses

Software purchases 1,047,017 192,806

Rent 13,921,158 10,327,060

Power, fuel and water charges 3,418,257 2,189,506

Repairs & maintenance others 3,310,730 2,560,340

Insurance 13,814,407 10,988,323

Communication costs 11,317,215 5,527,909

Printing & stationery 1,075,134 1,676,709

Travelling & conveyance 47,843,722 34,944,954

Directors’ sitting fees 32,500 30,500

Rates & taxes including filing fees 3,787,731 503,346

Advertisement & business promotion 15,407,617 13,597,004

Consultancy charges 11,146,246 12,504,516

Bad debts written off 448,425 -

Warranty expenses - 1,416,767

Provision for doubtful debts 4,295,276 -

Loss on sale of asset & assets written off 392,362 1,273,594

Exchange fluctuation account (net) - 25,649,186

Miscellaneous expenses 10,249,870 6,738,269

Total 141,507,667 130,120,789

Schedule - Q
Financial costs

Interest on fixed loans 1,126,721 1,715,117

Other interest & bank charges 23,247,978 12,700,189

Total 24,374,699 14,415,306

Amount in Rs.
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Schedule – R

I. Significant accounting policies

I.1. Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements relate to Subex Systems
Limited (the company) and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention in accordance with the applicable
Accounting Principles in India, the Accounting Standards issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, as adopted
consistently by the company. Revenues are recognised and
expenses accounted on their accrual, including provisions/
adjustments for committed obligations and amounts determined
as payable or receivable during the year.

I.2. Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
India GAAP requires that management makes estimates and
assumption that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue
and expenses during the reported period.  Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

I.3 Principles of consolidation

The financial statements of the company and it’s wholly owned
subsidiaries have been combined on a line by line basis by adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expense.
The intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated.

The excess of cost to the company of its investments in the
subsidiary over it’s share of the equity of the subsidiary, at the
date on which the investments in the subsidiary company was
made, is recognized as ‘goodwill’ being an asset in the
consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of both companies are prepared
according to uniform accounting policies in accordance with
the generally accepted accounting principles in India.

I.4. Revenue recognition

Sales are recognised on the dispatch of goods to customers and
are recorded net of discounts, rebates for price adjustment,
rejections, shortages in transit, taxes and duties but include
wherever applicable, export incentives.

Revenue from software development is recognised on the basis
of chargeable time or achievement of prescribed milestones as
relevant to each contract.

Contracts for sale of software licences include fees for transfer
of software licences (which normally coincides with delivery),
installation and commissioning.  Activities relating to installation
and commissioning involve minimal time and cost and are not
subject to uncertainties. Revenues from composite contracts
wherein fees for software licenses and implementation/
commissioning fees are not identifiable separately are recognized
on transfer of the software licenses and a provision is made for
the estimated costs relating to the installation and
commissioning. In the case of contracts, where the fees for
software licenses and implementation costs are identified
separately, revenues from software licenses are recognized on

transfer of software licenses and revenues from implementation
are recognized on completion of implementation and
commissioning.

Interest on investments and deposits are booked on a time
proportion basis taking into account the amounts invested and
the rate of interest.

Agency commission is accrued on shipment of consignment by
principal.

Maintenance and service income is recognised on accrual basis.

I.5. Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition inclusive of freight,
duties, taxes and interest on borrowed money allocated to and
utilised for fixed assets up to the date of capitalisation and other
direct expenditure incurred on ongoing projects. Assets acquired
on hire purchase are capitalised at gross value and interest thereon
is charged to revenue.

I.6. Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the useful lives of assets. Depreciation is charged on pro-rata
basis for assets purchased/ sold during the year.

The rates of depreciation adopted on the assets of the company
are as under

Particulars Depreciation Rates

Plant & machinery 20.00 %
Computers 25.00 %
Vehicles 20.00 %
Furniture & fixtures 20.00 %
Intangible assets 20.00 %

Individual assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated in
full, in the year of purchase.

I.7. Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value,
after providing for cost of obsolescence and other anticipated
losses, wherever considered necessary. Cost includes the aggregate
of all expenditure incurred in bringing the inventories to the present
condition and situation.

I.8. Employee stock option plans

For the shares granted /allocated under Employee Stock Option
Plan - I (ESOP - I), the Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
guidelines are not followed, since the scheme was formulated
prior to the promulgation of the guidelines.

Employee stock options under Employees Stock Option Plan - II
are accounted in accordance with the guidelines stipulated by
SEBI. The difference between the market price of the shares
underlying the options granted on the date of grant of option
and the option price is expensed as “Employees’ Compensation”
over the period of vesting.

I.9. Retirement benefits to employees

The company’s liability towards retirement benefits in the form
of provident fund is fully provided and charged to expenditure.
The company has entered into an agreement with LIC of India
for managing the gratuity liability through a fund, the premium
for which is funded by the company and charged to expenditure
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on accrual basis. Leave encashment benefits is accounted for an
estimated liability as at the date of the balance sheet.

I.10. Research and development

Expenses incurred on research and developments are charged to
revenue in the same year. Fixed asset purchased for research
and development are capitalized and depreciated as per the
company’s policy.

I.11. Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at
the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at year end
are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
balance sheet. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are carried at cost. Exchange differences on settlement
or restatement are adjusted in the profit & loss account.

Assets and liabilities of the foreign branches are translated into
Indian rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing as at the balance
sheet date. Revenue and expenses are translated into Indian
rupees at yearly average exchange rates prevailing during the
year.

The exchange difference arising out of the transactions pertaining
to the branch have been recognised as exchange gain/ (loss) in
the profit & loss account while those relating to the subsidiary
have been disclosed as ‘Exchange Reserve Arising on
Consolidation’ in reserves and surplus.

I.12. Investments

Long term investments are stated at cost. Diminution in the value
of investments other than temporary in nature is provided for.

I.13. Income taxes

Income tax comprises the current tax provision under the tax
payable method and the net change in the deferred tax asset or
liability in the year. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying values of the assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases.  Deferred tax assets are
recognized subject to management’s judgment that realization
is virtually certain. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be
received or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized in the income statement
in the period of enactment of the change.

I.14. Cash flow statement

Cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the
indirect method prescribed in Accounting Standard 3, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

I.15. Preliminary and share issue expenses

Expenses incurred during the initial public offer, follow on offer
and issue of bonus shares are amortised over 5 years. Other
issue expenses are charged to the securities premium account.

I.16. Provisions

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present
obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect

of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not
discounted to its present value and are determined based on
best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date.  These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

II. Notes to accounts

II.1. Subsidiary company

The company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Subex Technologies, Inc.,
incorporated in the USA and Subex Technologies Ltd, incorporated
in India during the year have been considered in the consolidated
financial statements.

II.2. Deferred income taxes

a) Provision for income taxes has been made in terms of
Accounting Standard 22 “Accounting for Taxes on Income”.
Deferred tax assets are subject to a valuation allowance that
reduces the amount recognized to that which is more likely than
not to  be realized.

Movement in deferred tax asset

2004-05 2003-04

Net deferred tax asset/
(liability) at April 1, 2004 (1,570,000) 2,050,000

Add: Tax benefits/ (charge)
for current year 5,545,809 (3,620,000)

Net deferred tax asset/
(liability) at March 31, 2005 3,975,809 (1,570,000)

b) The net deferred tax asset as at March 31, 2005 comprises the
tax impact arising from the timing differences on account of:

As at As at
March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Depreciation 11,789,537 (4,373,610)

Net deferred asset/ (liability)
relating to above 3,975,809 (1,570,000)

II.3. Contingent liabilities

Debts factored – Rs. 218,862,500 (Previous year, Rs. Nil)

Guarantees issued to Banks – Rs. 5,167,943 (Previous year, Rs. Nil)

Letter of credit issued by banks – Rs. 5,244,908 (Previous
year, Rs. Nil)

II.4. Acquisition of wholly-owned subsidiary - IVth Genera-
tion, Inc.

During 1999-2000, the company acquired the whole of the
outstanding shares of the IVth Generation, Inc. New Jersey, USA,
from its three owners. To reflect the true and correct state of
affairs, the acquisition was accounted at the full value of
Rs. 335,795,161 including advisory, syndication fees and other
costs, although a part of the amount payable is contingent upon
the future performance of the acquiree company.  During 2000-
2001, the cost of acquisition was reduced in accordance with
the final purchase consideration as per the Definitive Purchase
Agreement and accordingly the cost was stated at
Rs. 326,217,997. The amount of investment at March 31, 2005
stands at Rs. 308,018,007 after adjusting for the exchange
fluctuation on the deferred consideration as at the year end.
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The management has received an independent valuation of the
subsidiary, which indicates that there is no impairment of the
value of the investment.

During the year, the value of certain receivables taken over and
which have not been realized, have, in terms of the Definitive
Purchase Agreement, been set off against the carrying value of
the investment. The company has received the approval of the
Reserve Bank of India for this adjustment.

II.5. Acquisition of tangible and intangible assets – Alcatel, UK
and Lightbridge, USA.

During the year, the company acquired intellectual property rights
comprising of technology, knowhow, source code and software
connected with the fraud management software businesses from
Alcatel, UK and Lightbridge, USA for an amount of Rs.
172,812,313 and Rs. 141,685,665 respectively, including
expenses incurred in connection with the said acquisitions.

The value of intangible assets i.e., IPRs and goodwill acquired
are based on the valuation report by independent valuers. The
tangible assets are being depreciated as per the company’s
accounting policy. The intangible assets i.e., IPRs and goodwill
are being depreciated over 5 years in accordance with the
company’s assessment of useful life thereof. Accordingly, an
amount of Rs. 30,831,458 has been provided for in the financial
year under review.

Out of the amount of Rs. 172,812,313 accounted for the Alcatel
acquisition, a portion of the consideration amounting to
Rs. 22,754,000 (Euros 400,000) is to be discharged by way of
discounts allowable to Alcatel on sale of software licenses
prospected by them  over a period of 18 months commencing
from October 01, 2004, as a part of their obligations under the
reseller agreement entered into with the company. This liability
has been reflected as deferred payment liability in the balance
sheet.

II.6. Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB)

During the year, the company issued Foreign Currency Convertible
Bonds (FCCBs) aggregating to US$ 10 million to institutional
investors, to finance the above acquisitions.

The bonds carry interest of 200 basis points above 6-month LIBOR
and are redeemable by December 2009, if not converted into equity.
They are convertible at any time before maturity within a price
band of Rs. 270 to Rs. 300 per equity share, depending on the

then prevailing market price, subject to other terms.

FCCBs amounting to US$ 5,150,000 have been converted into
792,306 equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a conversion price of
Rs. 300 per share. FCCBs outstanding as at year end amounts to
Rs. 212,987,750 (US$ 4,850,000).

Further, an amount of US$ 537,412 remains unutilized in a money
market account in First Union Bank, New Jersey, USA, out of the
proceeds of the issue as on March 31, 2005.

Expenses connected with the issue of FCCBs amounting to
Rs. 20,216,653, has been charged to the securities premium
account during the year as per the company’s accounting policy.

II.7 Subex Technologies Ltd (STL)

Subex Technologies Ltd was incorporated on March 28, 2005, as
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Subex Systems Limited, with a
subscribed share capital amounting to Rs. 500,000 and as on
the date of this balance sheet, is yet to receive the Certificate
of Commencement of Business from the Registrar of Companies,
Karnataka.

II.8. Operating leases

The company has various operating leases for office facilities
and residential premises for employees which include leases that
are renewable on a yearly basis, cancelable at its option and
other long term leases. Rental expenses for operating leases
included in the Income statement for the year is Rs. 13,921,158.

As of March 31, 2005 future minimum lease payments for non-
cancellable operating leases for the next five fiscal years are:

Amount in Rs.

For the year ending March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Within one year from the
date of the balance sheet 9,817,664 4,410,412

Due in a period between
one year and five years 17,263,838 503,513

Due after five years —             —

II.9. Finance leases

The company has entered into various hire purchase transactions
for the acquisition of vehicles and computer systems. As of
March 31, 2005, future minimum lease payments on these
transactions are:

For the year ending Minimum lease payments Interest Present value

2004-05 2003-04 2004-05 2003-04 2004-05 2003-04

Within one year from the
date of the balance sheet 4,568,531 4,676,248 884,085 807,717 3,684,446 3,868,531

Due in a period between
one year and five years 11,299,224 9,118,357 1,088,474 994,349 10,210,750 8,124,009

Due after five years Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Amount in Rs.
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B) Details of the transactions with the related parties other than employees who are related to the Directors of the company is as
under:

of the movement in option grants during the period ended
resulted in a debit of Rs. 1,744,455 (Previous year, debit of
Rs. 1,580,438) to the profit & loss account for the year.

Employees stock options details as on the balance sheet date
are

ESOP – I

As at As at
March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004

Options outstanding at
the beginning of the year 26,602 51,397

Granted - -

Forfeited/ cancelled                       - 1,965

Exercised - 22,830

Balance at end of the year 26,602 26,602

ESOP – II

As at As at
March 31, 2005  March 31, 2004

Options outstanding at
the beginning of the year 301,440 196,375

Granted 101,800 130,650

Forfeited/ cancelled 32,749 15,599

Exercised 34,106 9,986

Balance at end of the year 336,385 301,440

II.11. Related party information

A) Related parties

Companies under same management

Cellcomm Solutions Ltd
Subex Holdings Private Limited

Key Management Personnel

Subash Menon, Chairman & Managing Director
Sudeesh Yezhuvath, Wholetime Director
Alex P. J, Executive Director

II.10. Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOP)

ESOP – I

The company had issued 120,000 equity shares at Rs. 10 each to
Subex Foundation, an employee welfare trust, constituted to
operate an Employee stock option plan. Consequent to the issue
of bonus shares, the total shares available with the trust had
increased to 240,000. As per the scheme in force, the trust
allocates shares to those employees deemed eligible by the
advisory board constituted for the purpose. The shares are
allocated at a price, which is not less than 50% of the fair
market price. The original shares granted are subject to a minimum
lock-in period of three years and the bonus shares are subject to
a minimum lock-in of 1 year, where after the shares granted can
be sold/ en-cashed. As at March 31, 2005, 152,780 shares have
been granted under the scheme to 30 employees. The balance of
87,220 shares, are available with the trust for future grants.
Since the scheme was formulated prior to the promulgation of
SEBI guidelines on ESOP dated June 19, 1999, the company has
been advised that the said guidelines are not applicable to this
scheme.

ESOP – II

During 1999-2000, the company established a new stock option
Scheme under which 500,000 options have been allocated for
grant to the employees. Each option comprises of one underlying
equity share of Rs. 10 each. This scheme has been formulated in
accordance with the SEBI guidelines on ESOP & ESPS dated June
19, 1999. As per the scheme, the compensatory committee grants
the options to the employees deemed eligible by the advisory
board constituted for the purpose.  The options are granted at a
price, which is not less than 85% of the average market price of
the underlying shares based on the quotation on the Bombay
Stock Exchange for 15 days prior to the date of grant. The shares
granted vest over a period of 1 to 4 years, and can be exercised
over a maximum period of 3 years from the date of vesting.

Under this scheme 336,385 options have been granted to 258
employees as at March 31, 2005. Out of the above option 52,096
options have been vested. The difference between the market
price of the share underlying the options granted on the date of
grant of option and the exercise price of the option are expensed
over the vesting period as per the SEBI guidelines. The net impact

Amounts in Rs.

Nature of Transaction Companies under same management Key management personnel Total

2004-05 2003-04 2004-05 2003-04 2004-05 2003-04

a) Inter corporate
deposits received 325,000 21,300,000 -      325,000 21,300,000

b) Interest paid on
inter corporate deposit 187,702 531,106 -     187,702 531,106

c) Repayment of inter
corporate deposit/ loan     2,073,508 57,675,000 -    2,073,508 57,675,000

d) Salary & perquisites - 15,670,746 10,179,435 15,670,746 10,179,435

e) Amount due to as at
March 31, 2005 1,748,508 4,975,500 1,806,869 4,975,500 3,555,377
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II.12. Earnings per share

a) Basic 2004-05 2003-04

Profit after tax A 257,208,258 177,638,937

Less: Dividend on preference shares & distribution tax (5,288,001) (25,555,404)

Net profit available to equity shareholders - basic B 251,920,257 152,083,533

b) Diluted

Profits after tax A 257,208,258 177,638,937

Add: Interest on FCCB 5,380,279 -

Net Profit available to equity shareholders – diluted B 262,588,537 177,638,937

Weighted average number of shares - basic C 8,916,737 7,346,581

Weighted average number of shares – diluted D 9,741,695          9,529,828

Earnings per share – basic B / C 28.25 20.70
Earnings per share - diluted A / D 26.96 18.64

II.13. Segmental reporting

The company’s operation comprises of software development,
services and sale of telecom products. Primary segmental
reporting comprises of products and services segment.  Secondary
segment is reported based on geographical location of customers.
The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation
of the financial statements are also consistently applied to record
income and expenditure in individual segments. These are as set
out in the note on significant accounting policies.

Information about primary business segment

In primary segment, revenue and direct expenses, which relate
to particular segment and which are identifiable, are reported,
while certain expenses such as depreciation and interest, which
form a significant component of total expenses, are not
specifically allocable to specific segments as the underlying
services are used interchangeably. The company believes that it
is not practical to provide segment disclosures relating to those
costs and expenses, and accordingly these expenses are separately
disclosed as “unallocated” and directly charged against total
income.

Amounts in Rs.

Particulars Products Services Consolidated
2004-05 2003-04 2004-05 2003-04 2004-05 2003-04

Revenues 627,968,982   396,753,259 537,533,104 482,497,450 1,165,502,087 879,250,709

Segment results before interest
& taxes 260,508,331 168,899,498 30,165,597 27,584,690 290,673,928 196,484,188

Less: Unallocable income,
net of unallocable expense - 7,102,230

Interest expense 24,374,699 14,415,306

Profit before tax 266,299,229 189,171,112

Provision for taxation:

Current (net of excess provision
relating to earlier years) 14,636,780 7,912,175

Deferred (5,545,809) 3,620,000

Profit after tax 257,208,258 177,638,934

Profit for the year 257,208,258 177,638,934
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Information about secondary business segment

Revenue attributable to location of customers

Amount in Rs.

Revenue APAC AMERICAS EMEA

2004-05  2004-05  2004-05

Software products 94,747,131 155,135,728 378,086,174

Software services  537,533,054

Total 94,747,131 692,668,782 378,086,174

Particulars of segment assets & liabilities Amount in Rs.

Products Services Unallocable Consolidated

2004-05 2003-04 2004-05 2003-04 2004-05 2003-04 2004-05 2003-04

Segement assets 474,397,763 421,052,294 258,068,826 194,288,996 694,897,817 157,045,093 1,427,364,406 772,386,383

Segement liabilties 159,557,687 79,997,906 159,557,687 79,997,906

Unallocable assets exclude

Goodwill 308,987,980 308,987,980

Investments 1,000 1,000

Advance income taxes 9,841,828 10,690,398

Miscellaneous expenditure 283,079 256,942

Deferred tax asset 3,975,809 -

Total 323,089,696 319,936,320

Unallocable liabilities exclude

Loans - secured 73,282,446 147,203,061

Loans – unsecured 212,987,750 1,748,508

Deferred consideration 22,754,000 18,883,619

Provisions 40,883,953 40,077,136

Defer tax liability - 1,570,000

Total 349,908,149 209,482,324

Fixed assets used in the company’s business or liabilities
contracted have not been identified to any of the primary
reportable segments, as the fixed assets and services are used
interchangeably between segments. Significantly all the fixed
assets of the company are located in India. The company believes
that it is currently not practicable to provide segment disclosures
relating to total assets and liabilities since a meaningful
segregation of the available data is onerous.

Revenue APAC AMERICAS EMEA

2003-04  2003-04  2003-04

Software products 97,798,470 85,765,752 213,266,287

Software services  482,420,200

Total 97,798,470 568,185,952 213,266,287

Segment assets based on their location

Amount in Rs.

2004-05 2003-04

APAC 494,927,592 169,128,278

EMEA 244,899,402 169,064,257

AMERICAS 361,233,568 301,596,327

1,101,060,562 639,788,862

II.15. Quantitative details

None of the traded items are in excess of 10% of revenues and it
is not practicable to give quantitative information in the absence
of common expressible units.

II.16. Others

1. During the year the company has switched all its working
capital facilities from State Bank of India to UTI Bank Ltd, but
for an FCNR(B) loan amounting to US$ 1,300,000, which is
repayable on May 11, 2005. However, there are no loans
outstanding with UTI Bank Ltd as on March 31, 2005.

Fund and non-fund based credit facilities availed from State
Bank of India are secured by the first charge on all the fixed and
current assets of the company. These loans are also secured by
equitable mortgage of land belonging to the company. The loans
are further secured by the personal guarantee of Promoter
Directors of the company and property belonging to Subex
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Holdings Pvt. Ltd. Facilities with UTI Bank Ltd are secured by
hypothecation of receivables and charge on the company’s fixed
assets.

2. Estimated amount of contracts, remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for (net of advances paid) Rs.
Nil  (Previous year, Rs. Nil).

3. Amount of Rs. 301,227 represents the unclaimed dividend for
the period from 1999-2004. No part thereof has remained unpaid
or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date they
become due for payment requiring a transfer to the ‘Investor
Education and Protection Fund’.

4. Personnel cost for the year include expenditure on research
and development of Rs. 6,000,318 (Previous year, Rs. 5,328,021)

5. The shareholders of the company had approved, in the Extra
ordinary General Meeting (EGM) in March, 2003, the allotment
of 1,887,000, 12.25% Redeemable Optionally Convertible
Cumulative Preference Shares (ROCCPS) at a face value of Rs. 98
per share and tenor of 36 months. Out of this, 1,570,245 ROCCPS
were allotted to Intel Capital and UTI Venture Funds on March
31, 2003 and the balance 316,755 ROCCPS were allotted to
Toronto Dominion Bank on April 07, 2003 after receipt of
subscription amount from them.

As per terms of issue, each ROCCPS is convertible at the option
of the shareholder into an equity share at a premium of Rs. 88
each. Such option is to be exercised before expiry of 18 months
from the date of allotment. During the year under review,
1,887,000 ROCCPS have been converted into equal number of
equity shares at a premium of Rs. 88 per share, pursuant to  the
option exercised by Intel Capital (958,000 equity shares) and
UTI  Venture Funds (612,245 equity shares) and Toronto Dominion
Bank (316,755 shares).

6. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped to conform to
the classifications for the year.

Signature to the Schedules  A – R

Subash Menon Sudeesh Yezhuvath
Chairman & Wholetime
Managing Director Director

V. Balaji Bhat Rajkumar C
Director Company

Secretary &
Bangalore Legal
April 28, 2005 Counsel
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Shareholders’ Information

1. Date and venue of the : July 28, 2005 at Le Meridien,
Annual General Meeting 28, Sankey Road
(AGM) Bangalore - 560 052.

2. Dates of book closure : July 22, 2005 to July 28, 2005
(both days inclusive)

3. Dividend payment : 30% (10% interim and 20%
final for equity shareholders)

4. Calendar of Board meetings to adopt the accounts (tentative
and subject to change) :

For quarter ending June 30, 2005 – on July 28, 2005
For quarter ending September 30, 2005 – on October 27, 2005
For quarter ending December 30, 2005 – on January 26, 2006
For year ending March 31, 2006 – on April 27, 2006

5. Listing on : National Stock Exchange (NSE)
Stock Exchanges The Stock Exchange, Mumbai (BSE)

Bangalore Stock Exchange (BgSE)
Luxembourg Stock Exchange*

* Foreign Currency Convertible Bond

6. Listing fees : Paid for all the above stock
exchanges for 2005-06

7. Registered office : No. 721, 7th Main, Mahalaxmi
Layout, Bangalore – 560 086

8. Shares of the company have been quoting from September 05,
2003 on the National Stock Exchange (NSE), from July 31, 2000
on The Stock Exchange, Mumbai (BSE) and from  September 03,
1999 on the Bangalore Stock Exchange Limited (BgSE). The
company’s equity shares were delisted from Hyderabad Stock
Exchange (HSE) with effect from January 19, 2005.

9. Share transfers and other communication regarding share
certificates and change of address etc., may be addressed to:

M/s Canbank Computer Services Ltd., R & T Centre
Naveen Complex, 4th Floor, #14, M.G.Road,
Bangalore -560 001
Phone : 91-80-25320541/ 542/ 543
Fax : 91-80-25320544
Email : ccslrnt@vsnl.com
Website: www.canbankrta.com

10. Process for the transfer of shares:

Share transfers would be registered and returned within a period
of 20 days from the date of receipt, if the documents are clear
in all respects.  The company holds share transfer committee
meetings one/ two/ three times a month, as may be required,
for approving the transfers/ transmissions of equity shares.

11. Stock market data relating to shares listed in India:

Monthly high and low quotations as well as the volume of shares
traded at National, Mumbai, Bangalore for 2005-2006 are:

NSE BSE BgSE & HSE

Month High Low Volume High Low Volume High Low Volume
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Nos. Rs. Rs. Nos.

Apr ‘04   347.50 278.00  86,620 350.50 279.95 86,873 NT NT NT NT NT NT

May ‘04 328.95 220.00 181,415 326.00 220.00 138,427 NT NT NT NT NT NT

Jun ‘04 280.00 228.00 61,194 266.00 230.00 32,747 NT NT NT NT NT NT

Jul ’04 315.00 222.00 133,890 315.00 235.05 76,938 NT NT NT NT NT NT

Aug ‘04 335.00 273.00 235,812 336.50 272.50 226,246 NT NT NT NT NT NT

Sep’ 04 361.90 307.00 304,051 361.90 307.00 230,095 NT NT NT NT NT NT

Oct ‘04 398.00 315.00 249,600 396.60 314.05 73,070 NT NT NT NT NT NT

Nov ‘04 397.95 328.10 162,190 399.00 326.00 609,934 NT NT NT NT NT NT

Dec ‘04 380.05 335.00 145,657 385.00 348.00 136,641 NT NT NT NT NT NT

Jan ‘05 428.00 355.10 248,293 427.70 366.00 248,680 NT NT NT NT NT NT

Feb ‘05 456.00 366.00 1,673,374 453.70 360.00 2,932,599 NT NT NT NT NT NT

Mar ‘05 450.00 353.00 540,221 435.00 355.00 364,899 NT NT NT NT NT NT

Total 4,022,317 Total 5,157,149

NT: Not Traded.

12. Investors’ services – Complaints received from April 01, 2004 to March 31, 2005:

Nature of complaints Received Cleared

1. Non-receipt of share certificates/ refund orders/ call money
notice/ allotment advice/ dividend warrant - -

2. Letters from NSDL, Banks etc. - -

3. Correction/ change of bank mandate of refund order, change of address - -

4. Postal returns of cancelled stock invests/ refund orders/ share certificates/ dividend warrants 2 2

5. Other general query - -

Total 2 2
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During the year ended March 31, 2005, the company has
attended to all the investors’ grievances/ correspondence
within a period of 10 days from the date of receipt of the
same.

13. Legal proceedings

Subex has been made a defendant in a case filed by

No. of equity shares held As on March 31, 2005 As on March 31, 2004

No. of shareholders % of shareholders No. of shareholders % of shareholders

1 - 500 4,205 87.57 3,441 87.87

501 - 1000 260 5.41 263 6.71

1001 - 5000 230 4.79 157 4.02

5001 - 10000 28 0.58 13 0.33

10001 and above 79 1.65 42 1.07

4,802 100.00 3,916 100.00

Mr. Arun Dhariwal in respect of complaint received by the
company regarding loss of 12 share certificates comprising
of 1,200 shares by Mr. Ashok Dhariwal & Others.  The matter
is presently sub-judice.  However this case is not material
in nature.

14. Distribution of shareholding

15. Categories of shareholders

As on March 31, 2005 As on March 31, 2004

Category No. of  Voting No. of No. of  Voting No. of
shareholders strength % shares held shareholders strength % shares held

Public & others 4,300 25.90 2,607,391 3,522 20.71 1,523,256

Companies 417 20.34 2,047,556 376 4.02 295,533

Core promoters 3 27.02 2,720,480 3 54.69 4,021,600

Mutual funds 18 11.32 1,139,268 8 4.11 302,552

ESOP 50 0.34 34,701 1 1.55 113,822

Foreign insttn. investors 14 15.08 1,517,827 6 14.92 1,097,048

4,802 100.00 10,067,223 3,916 100.00 7,353,811

16. Investors’ correspondence may be addressed to

For investor matters

Rajkumar C
Company Secretary & Legal Counsel

Subex Systems Limited,
No. 372, Koramangala III Block,
Sarjapur Road, Bangalore – 560 034, India,
Telephone : 91 80 5759 8700
E-mail: rajkumarc@subexsystems.com
investorrelations@subexsystems.com

For queries relating to financial statements

Mr. Subash Menon,
Chairman & Managing Director
Subex Systems Limited,
No. 372, Koramangala , III Block,
Sarjapur Road,  Bangalore – 560 034, India,
Telephone : 91 80 5759 8700

17. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

All shareholders holding shares in physical form are
requested to convert their holdings into electronic form.

18. Stock Code

SUBEX (NSE)
SUSL.B (BSE)
SUBEXSYS (BgSE)
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